
GOODHUE COUNTY

 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (GCHHS) 

 AGENDA
“Due to concerns surrounding the spread of COVID-19, it has been determined that in-
person meetings or meetings conducted under Minn. Stat. 13D.02a are not practical or 

prudent.   Therefore, meetings that are governed by the Open Meeting Law will temporarily 
be conducted by telephone or other electronic means pursuant to Minn. Stat. 13D.021.”

Goodhue County Health and Human Services Board will conduct a board meeting pursuant 
to this section on November 16, 2021 at 10:30 a.m. via GoToMeeting platform.  The board 

and staff will attend the meeting via  GoToMeeting by video or phone.  The public is 
welcome to monitor the meeting by logging into 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/359909069  or calling 1 866 899 4679   beginning at 
10:20 a.m. or any time during the meeting. Access Code: 359-909-069 

New to GoToMeeting:  Get the app now and be ready when your meeting starts   
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/359909069

CALL TO ORDER 

REVIEW AND APPROVE BOARD MEETING AGENDA:

REVIEW AND APPROVE PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES:

OCTOBER 19, 2021 HHS BOARD MINUTES.PDF

REVIEW AND APPROVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ON THE CONSENT 
AGENDA: 

Child Care Licensure Approvals

CHILD CARE APPROVALS.PDF

WIC And Peer Breastfeeding Contract

WIC AND PEER BREASTFEEDING CONTRACT.PDF

TriMin Systems Agreement

TRIMIN AGREEMENT.PDF

MN Family Investment Program (MFIP) Biennial Service Agreement

MFIP SERVICE AGREEMENT.PDF

ACTION ITEMS:

Accounts Payable

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE.PDF

C.A.R.E. Clinic Interagency Agreement

Kris Johnson and Brooke Hawkenson

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT.PDF

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

COVID-19 Update

Nina Arneson

11-2021 COVID-19 HHS BOARD UPDATE.PDF

3rd Quarter 2021 Fiscal Report

Kayla Matter

HHS 3RD QUARTER 2021 FISCAL REPORT.PDF

FYI-MONTHLY REPORTS:

Child Protection Report

CHILD PROTECTION REPORT.PDF

HHS Staffing Report

HHS STAFFING REPORT.PDF

HHS Trend Report

QUARTERLY TREND REPORT.PDF

DHS 2022-2023 County And Tribal Child Care Fund Plan

DHS CHILD CARE FUND PLAN.PDF

HHS COVID-19 Booster Clinic Flyers

HHS COVID-19 BOOSTER CLINIC FLYERS.PDF

ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS:

ADJOURN

Next Meeting Will Be December 14, 2021 At 10:30 A.M.

 PROMOTE, STRENGTHEN, AND PROTECT THE HEALTH OF INDIVIDUALS, 

FAMILIES, AND COMMUNITIES

1.

2.

3.

Documents:

4.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

c.

Documents:

d.

Documents:

5.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

6.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

7.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

c.

Documents:

d.

Documents:

e.

Documents:

8.

9.

a.

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/359909069
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/851323621
tel:+18668994679,,359909069
tel:+18668994679,,851323621
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/359909069


GOODHUE COUNTY

 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (GCHHS) 

 AGENDA
“Due to concerns surrounding the spread of COVID-19, it has been determined that in-
person meetings or meetings conducted under Minn. Stat. 13D.02a are not practical or 

prudent.   Therefore, meetings that are governed by the Open Meeting Law will temporarily 
be conducted by telephone or other electronic means pursuant to Minn. Stat. 13D.021.”

Goodhue County Health and Human Services Board will conduct a board meeting pursuant 
to this section on November 16, 2021 at 10:30 a.m. via GoToMeeting platform.  The board 

and staff will attend the meeting via  GoToMeeting by video or phone.  The public is 
welcome to monitor the meeting by logging into 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/359909069  or calling 1 866 899 4679   beginning at 
10:20 a.m. or any time during the meeting. Access Code: 359-909-069 

New to GoToMeeting:  Get the app now and be ready when your meeting starts   
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/359909069

CALL TO ORDER 

REVIEW AND APPROVE BOARD MEETING AGENDA:

REVIEW AND APPROVE PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES:

OCTOBER 19, 2021 HHS BOARD MINUTES.PDF

REVIEW AND APPROVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ON THE CONSENT 
AGENDA: 

Child Care Licensure Approvals

CHILD CARE APPROVALS.PDF

WIC And Peer Breastfeeding Contract

WIC AND PEER BREASTFEEDING CONTRACT.PDF

TriMin Systems Agreement

TRIMIN AGREEMENT.PDF

MN Family Investment Program (MFIP) Biennial Service Agreement

MFIP SERVICE AGREEMENT.PDF

ACTION ITEMS:

Accounts Payable

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE.PDF

C.A.R.E. Clinic Interagency Agreement

Kris Johnson and Brooke Hawkenson

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT.PDF

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

COVID-19 Update

Nina Arneson

11-2021 COVID-19 HHS BOARD UPDATE.PDF

3rd Quarter 2021 Fiscal Report

Kayla Matter

HHS 3RD QUARTER 2021 FISCAL REPORT.PDF

FYI-MONTHLY REPORTS:

Child Protection Report

CHILD PROTECTION REPORT.PDF

HHS Staffing Report

HHS STAFFING REPORT.PDF

HHS Trend Report

QUARTERLY TREND REPORT.PDF

DHS 2022-2023 County And Tribal Child Care Fund Plan

DHS CHILD CARE FUND PLAN.PDF

HHS COVID-19 Booster Clinic Flyers

HHS COVID-19 BOOSTER CLINIC FLYERS.PDF

ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS:

ADJOURN

Next Meeting Will Be December 14, 2021 At 10:30 A.M.

 PROMOTE, STRENGTHEN, AND PROTECT THE HEALTH OF INDIVIDUALS, 

FAMILIES, AND COMMUNITIES

1.

2.

3.

Documents:

4.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

c.

Documents:

d.

Documents:

5.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

6.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

7.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

c.

Documents:

d.

Documents:

e.

Documents:

8.

9.

a.



GOODHUE COUNTY

 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (GCHHS) 

 AGENDA
“Due to concerns surrounding the spread of COVID-19, it has been determined that in-
person meetings or meetings conducted under Minn. Stat. 13D.02a are not practical or 

prudent.   Therefore, meetings that are governed by the Open Meeting Law will temporarily 
be conducted by telephone or other electronic means pursuant to Minn. Stat. 13D.021.”

Goodhue County Health and Human Services Board will conduct a board meeting pursuant 
to this section on November 16, 2021 at 10:30 a.m. via GoToMeeting platform.  The board 

and staff will attend the meeting via  GoToMeeting by video or phone.  The public is 
welcome to monitor the meeting by logging into 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/359909069  or calling 1 866 899 4679   beginning at 
10:20 a.m. or any time during the meeting. Access Code: 359-909-069 

New to GoToMeeting:  Get the app now and be ready when your meeting starts   
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/359909069

CALL TO ORDER 

REVIEW AND APPROVE BOARD MEETING AGENDA:

REVIEW AND APPROVE PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES:

OCTOBER 19, 2021 HHS BOARD MINUTES.PDF

REVIEW AND APPROVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ON THE CONSENT 
AGENDA: 

Child Care Licensure Approvals

CHILD CARE APPROVALS.PDF

WIC And Peer Breastfeeding Contract

WIC AND PEER BREASTFEEDING CONTRACT.PDF

TriMin Systems Agreement

TRIMIN AGREEMENT.PDF

MN Family Investment Program (MFIP) Biennial Service Agreement

MFIP SERVICE AGREEMENT.PDF

ACTION ITEMS:

Accounts Payable

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE.PDF

C.A.R.E. Clinic Interagency Agreement

Kris Johnson and Brooke Hawkenson

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT.PDF

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

COVID-19 Update

Nina Arneson

11-2021 COVID-19 HHS BOARD UPDATE.PDF

3rd Quarter 2021 Fiscal Report

Kayla Matter

HHS 3RD QUARTER 2021 FISCAL REPORT.PDF

FYI-MONTHLY REPORTS:

Child Protection Report

CHILD PROTECTION REPORT.PDF

HHS Staffing Report

HHS STAFFING REPORT.PDF

HHS Trend Report

QUARTERLY TREND REPORT.PDF

DHS 2022-2023 County And Tribal Child Care Fund Plan

DHS CHILD CARE FUND PLAN.PDF

HHS COVID-19 Booster Clinic Flyers

HHS COVID-19 BOOSTER CLINIC FLYERS.PDF

ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS:

ADJOURN

Next Meeting Will Be December 14, 2021 At 10:30 A.M.

 PROMOTE, STRENGTHEN, AND PROTECT THE HEALTH OF INDIVIDUALS, 

FAMILIES, AND COMMUNITIES

1.

2.

3.

Documents:

4.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

c.

Documents:

d.

Documents:

5.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

6.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

7.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

c.

Documents:

d.

Documents:

e.

Documents:

8.

9.

a.



GOODHUE COUNTY

 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (GCHHS) 

 AGENDA
“Due to concerns surrounding the spread of COVID-19, it has been determined that in-
person meetings or meetings conducted under Minn. Stat. 13D.02a are not practical or 

prudent.   Therefore, meetings that are governed by the Open Meeting Law will temporarily 
be conducted by telephone or other electronic means pursuant to Minn. Stat. 13D.021.”

Goodhue County Health and Human Services Board will conduct a board meeting pursuant 
to this section on November 16, 2021 at 10:30 a.m. via GoToMeeting platform.  The board 

and staff will attend the meeting via  GoToMeeting by video or phone.  The public is 
welcome to monitor the meeting by logging into 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/359909069  or calling 1 866 899 4679   beginning at 
10:20 a.m. or any time during the meeting. Access Code: 359-909-069 

New to GoToMeeting:  Get the app now and be ready when your meeting starts   
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/359909069

CALL TO ORDER 

REVIEW AND APPROVE BOARD MEETING AGENDA:

REVIEW AND APPROVE PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES:

OCTOBER 19, 2021 HHS BOARD MINUTES.PDF

REVIEW AND APPROVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ON THE CONSENT 
AGENDA: 

Child Care Licensure Approvals

CHILD CARE APPROVALS.PDF

WIC And Peer Breastfeeding Contract

WIC AND PEER BREASTFEEDING CONTRACT.PDF

TriMin Systems Agreement

TRIMIN AGREEMENT.PDF

MN Family Investment Program (MFIP) Biennial Service Agreement

MFIP SERVICE AGREEMENT.PDF

ACTION ITEMS:

Accounts Payable

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE.PDF

C.A.R.E. Clinic Interagency Agreement

Kris Johnson and Brooke Hawkenson

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT.PDF

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

COVID-19 Update

Nina Arneson

11-2021 COVID-19 HHS BOARD UPDATE.PDF

3rd Quarter 2021 Fiscal Report

Kayla Matter

HHS 3RD QUARTER 2021 FISCAL REPORT.PDF

FYI-MONTHLY REPORTS:

Child Protection Report

CHILD PROTECTION REPORT.PDF

HHS Staffing Report

HHS STAFFING REPORT.PDF

HHS Trend Report

QUARTERLY TREND REPORT.PDF

DHS 2022-2023 County And Tribal Child Care Fund Plan

DHS CHILD CARE FUND PLAN.PDF

HHS COVID-19 Booster Clinic Flyers

HHS COVID-19 BOOSTER CLINIC FLYERS.PDF

ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS:

ADJOURN

Next Meeting Will Be December 14, 2021 At 10:30 A.M.

 PROMOTE, STRENGTHEN, AND PROTECT THE HEALTH OF INDIVIDUALS, 

FAMILIES, AND COMMUNITIES

1.

2.

3.

Documents:

4.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

c.

Documents:

d.

Documents:

5.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

6.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

7.

a.

Documents:

b.

Documents:

c.

Documents:

d.

Documents:

e.

Documents:

8.

9.

a.

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/ef5a4ebc-74bd-4cd0-b73c-efbb1907e7fd


Goodhue County Health & Human Services Board 
Meeting Minutes of October 19, 2021 

 
GOODHUE COUNTY 

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES BOARD MEETING 
MINUTES OF OCTOBER 19, 2021 

 
The Goodhue County Health and Human Services Board convened their regularly scheduled 
meeting at 10:35 A.M., Tuesday, October 19, 2021, on-line via GoToMeeting. 
 
Brad Anderson, Paul Drotos, Linda Flanders, Todd Greseth, Susan Johnson, Jason Majerus, and 
Nina Pagel. 
 
 
STAFF AND OTHERS PRESENT: 
 
Nina Arneson, Kris Johnson, Mike Zorn, Lisa Woodford, Jessica Seide,  Ruth Greenslade, Maggie 
Cichosz, Jinny Rietmann, Kayla Matter, and Wanda Jenson. 
 
 
AGENDA: 
 
On a motion by L. Flanders and seconded by N. Pagel, the Board unanimously approved the 
October 19, 2021 Agenda.  
 
 
MEETING MINUTES: 
 
On a motion by S. Johnson and seconded by L. Flanders, the Board unanimously approved the 
Minutes of the H&HS Board Meeting on September 21, 2021. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
On a motion by L. Flanders and seconded by N. Pagel, the Board unanimously approved all items 
on the consent agenda. 
 
 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 
On a motion by S. Johnson and seconded by B. Anderson, the Board unanimously approved 
payment of all accounts as presented. 
 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 
Workforce Development Inc. (WDI) Update by Jinny Rietmann and Wanda Jensen 
 
COVID-19 HHS Board Update – Nina, Arneson, Maggie Cichosz and Kris Johnson  
 



Goodhue County Health & Human Services Board 
Meeting Minutes of October 19, 2021 

FYI & REPORTS: 
 
Child Protection Report 
Goodhue County Flu Vaccination Clinics 
Advisory Panel to the MN Attorney General- Distribution and Allocation of Opioid Settlement 
Funds 
South Country Health Alliance (SCHA) Press Release 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS: 
 
  
 
ADJOURN: 
 
On a motion by T. Gresseth and seconded by L. Flanders the Board approved adjournment of 
this session of the Health & Human Services Board Meeting at or around 11:22 am.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Promote, Strengthen and Protect the Health  
of Individuals, Families and Communities! 
Equal Opportunity Employer 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS 

 
 
GOODHUE COUNTY 
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (HHS) 
 
 
 
 
 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

 

Requested 
Board Date: November 16, 2021 Staff Lead: 

 
Katie Bystrom 
 

 
Consent 
Agenda: 

 
Yes             
 No 

Attachments: 
 

 Yes       
 No 

Action 
Requested: Approve Child Care Licensure Actions   

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Child Care Relicensures:  
             

• Karen Nowariak, Red Wing MN 
 
 
 
Child Care Licensures: 
 
 
 
 
 
Number of Licensed Family Child Care Homes:  75 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Goodhue County HHS Department recommends approval of the 
above.  
 

https://www.health.state.mn.us/communities/practice/ta/accreditation.html
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS


 
GOODHUE COUNTY  
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (GCHHS)  
 
 
 
 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

 
Requested 
Board Date: November 16, 2021 Staff Lead: Brooke Hawkenson 

 
Consent 
Agenda: 

 
Yes             
 No 

Attachments: 
 

 Yes       
 No 

Action 
Requested: 

Approval of WIC (Women, Infants, and Children) and WIC 
Peer Breastfeeding Contract  

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
WIC (Women, Infants, and Children) is a supplement food program aimed at providing nutrition 
education and healthy food options. The program is for infants, children up to age 5, and women 
who are pregnant, breastfeeding, or recently delivered a baby. WIC participants must meet 
income guidelines or must be enrolled in other county assistance programs such as MA or 
SNAP.  
 
Since the start of COVID-19 our services are no longer in person. All appointments are 
conducted by phone and will continue by phone as long as waivers are in place. Currently that is 
90 days past when the Public Health Emergency Declaration ends. This is set to expire the end 
of January of 2022. Our services will remain remote until April 2022. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:     
HHS recommends approval of the WIC and Peer Breastfeeding grant amendments.    
    



CHB Grant Project Agreement Template FEDERAL FUNDS Version 1.10, 03/2021 
Grant Project Agreement Number 202792 

Between the Minnesota Department of Health and Goodhue County Health and Human Services 
 

Page 1 of 7 

  

Minnesota Department of Health 
Grant Award Cover Sheet 

 
You have received a grant award from the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH). Information about 
the grant award, including funding details, are included below.  Contact your MDH Grant Manager if 
you have questions about this cover sheet.  

ATTACHMENT: Grant Project Agreement  
CONTACT FOR MDH: Kate Franken, 651-201-4403, kate.franken@state.mn.us 
 

Grantee SWIFT Information Grant Agreement Information Funding Information  
Name of MDH Grantee:  
Goodhue County Health and Human 
Services 
 

Grant Agreement/Project Agreement 
Number: 202792 

Total Grant Funds (all funding sources): $ 
 

Grantee SWIFT Vendor Number: 
0000197327 
 
SWIFT Vendor Location Code: 001 

Period of Performance Start Date:  
January 1, 2022 
Period of Performance End Date:  
December 31, 2026 

Total Federal Grant Funds: $ 
 

Notice to Grantee about Federal Funds 
You have received a sub-award of federal financial assistance from MDH. Information about the award 
is being shared with you per 2 CFR 200.331. Please keep a copy of this cover sheet with the grant 
project agreement.  

Grantee Data Universal Numbering System 
(DUNS) Name and Number 

DUNS Name: Goodhue, County of 
DUNS Number: 051690642 

Grantee’s Approved Indirect Cost Rate for the 
Grant  

Is The Award for Research and Development? ☐Yes 
☒No 

Project Description Minnesota is authorized to enter into contractual agreements for the administration of the 
Minnesota Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children, and the Food 
Nutrition Service of the U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Name of Federal Awarding Agency Title 7, Part 246 of the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 

CFDA Name and Number 
(Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance) 

CFDA Name: WIC Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children 
CFDA Number: 10.557 

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)/ 
Grantor’s Pass-through Number 

WIC - 222MN004W1003 
PEER - 222MN004W5003 

Federal Award Date  
(Date MDH received federal grant) 

WIC -   10/01/2021 – 09/30/2022 
PEER - 10/01/2021 – 09/30/2024  

Total Amount of Federal Award Received by 
MDH 

WIC                       PEER 
$32,000,000        $1,400,000 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED

mailto:kate.franken@state.mn.us


CHB Grant Project Agreement Template FEDERAL FUNDS Version 1.10, 03/2021 
Grant Project Agreement Number 202792 

Between the Minnesota Department of Health and Goodhue County Health and Human Services 
 

Page 2 of 7 

 

Minnesota Department of Health 
Community Health Board Grant Project Agreement 

This Grant Project Agreement, and amendments and supplements, is between the State of Minnesota, acting 
through its Commissioner of Health ( “STATE”) and Goodhue County Health and Human Services, an 
independent organization, not an employee of the State of Minnesota, address 426 West Avenue, Red Wing, 
MN 55066, (“GRANTEE”). 
 
1.  Under Minnesota Statutes 144.0742, the STATE is empowered to enter into a contractual agreement for the 

provision of statutorily prescribed public health services; 

2.  The STATE and the GRANTEE have entered into Master Grant Contract number 12-700-00074 (“Master 
Grant Contract”) effective January 1, 2020 or subsequent Master Grant Contracts and amendments and 
supplements thereto; 

3.  The STATE, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 145.894(b) and Minnesota Rules 4617.0030 is 
authorized to enter into contractual agreements for the administration of the Minnesota Special 
Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC Program), and the Food and 
Nutrition Service of the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) has promulgated Title 7, Code of Federal 
Regulations (7 C.F.R.) Part 246, under Section 17 of the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 U.S. C1786), to carry 
out the WIC Program (CFDA#10.557) and the Peer Breastfeeding Support Program (PBSP). Accordingly, the 
STATE is empowered to administer the WIC Program and PBSP; and 

4.  The GRANTEE represents that it is duly qualified and willing to perform the duties described in this grant 
project agreement to the satisfaction of the STATE. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 16B.98, 
subdivision 1, the GRANTEE agrees to minimize administrative costs as a condition of this grant. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed: 

1. Incorporation of Master Grant Contract. All terms and conditions of the Master Grant Contract are hereby 
incorporated by reference into this grant project agreement.  

 
2. Term of Agreement.  
 

2.1 Effective date. This grant project agreement shall be effective on January 1, 2022, or the date the STATE 
obtains all required signatures under Minnesota Statutes 16B.98. Subd. 5(a), whichever is later. The 
GRANTEE must not begin work until this contract is fully executed and the State’s Authorized 
Representative has notified the GRANTEE that work may commence. 

2.2 Expiration date. December 31, 2026, or until all obligations have been fulfilled to the satisfaction of the 
STATE, whichever occurs first, except for the requirements specified in this grant project agreement with 
completion dates which extend beyond the termination date specified in this sentence. 

 
3. Grantee’s Duties and Responsibilities. The GRANTEE shall: complete the duties set forth in Exhibit A 

“Grantee’s Duties,” and Exhibit C “Peer Grantee’s Duties” which are attached and incorporated into this 
grant project agreement. 

4. Consideration and Payment. 

4.1 Consideration. The STATE will pay for all services performed by the GRANTEE under this grant project 
agreement as follows: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



CHB Grant Project Agreement Template FEDERAL FUNDS Version 1.10, 03/2021 
Grant Project Agreement Number 202792 

Between the Minnesota Department of Health and Goodhue County Health and Human Services 
 

Page 3 of 7 

(a) Compensation. The GRANTEE will be paid by notification of their grant amount through annual funding 
letters, in an amount that will be based on available federal funds as described in Exhibit B, WIC Grant 
Funding and Exhibit D Peer Grant Funding   

(b) Total Obligation. The total obligation of the STATE for all compensation and reimbursements to the 
GRANTEE under this grant project agreement will not an amount established in written funding letters, 
which upon available federal funds as outlined in Exhibit B, WIC Grant Funding and Exhibit D, Peer Grant 
Funding.  The State may, at the option of the STATE, withhold from such payment any or all amounts for 
which the GRANTEE is required to reimburse the STATE under Exhibit A, clause (J) and under Exhibit C, 
clause (U) 

 
4.2 Terms of Payment. 

(a) Invoices. The State will promptly pay the GRANTEE after the GRANTEE presents an itemized invoice for 
the services actually performed and the State's Authorized Representative accepts the invoiced services. 
Invoices must be submitted in a timely fashion and according to the following schedule: Invoices must be 
submitted in a timely fashion as described in Exhibit B, WIC Grant Funding and D. 

(b) Federal Funds. Payments under this grant project agreement will be made from federal funds obtained 
by the STATE through Title 7, Part 246, CFDA number 10.557 of the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. 
section 1786), including public law and all amendments. The Notice of Grant Award (NGA) number is WIC - 
222MN004W1003, PEER - 222MN004W5003. The GRANTEE is responsible for compliance with all federal 
requirements imposed on these funds and accepts full financial responsibility for any requirements imposed 
by the Grantee's failure to comply with federal requirements. If at any time federal funds become 
unavailable, this agreement shall be terminated immediately upon written notice of by the STATE to the 
GRANTEE. In the event of such a termination, GRANTEE is entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata 
basis, for services satisfactorily performed. 

5. Conditions of Payment. All services provided by GRANTEE pursuant to this grant project agreement must be 
performed to the satisfaction of the STATE, as determined in the sole discretion of its Authorized 
Representative. Further, all services provided by the GRANTEE must be in accord with all applicable federal, 
state, and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.  

6. Ownership of Equipment. Disposition of all equipment purchased under this grant project agreement shall 
be in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations, Title 45, Part 74, Subpart C or, for Notice of Grant 
Awards issued on or after December 26, 2014, in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations, Title 2, 
Subpart A, Chapter II, Part 200. For all equipment having a current per unit fair market value of $5,000 or 
more, the STATE shall have the right to require transfer of the equipment, including title, to the Federal 
Government or to an eligible non-Federal party named by the STATE. This right will normally be exercised by 
the STATE only if the project or program for which the equipment was acquired is transferred from one 
grantee to another. 

7. Authorized Representatives.  

7.1  STATE’s Authorized Representative. The STATE’s Authorized Representative for purposes of 
administering this grant project agreement is Kate Franken, WIC Program Director, Minnesota Department 
of Health, 85 East 7th Place, PO Box 64882, St. Paul MN  55164-0882, telephone number 651-201-4403, and 
email kate.franken@state.mn.us , or his/her successor, and has the responsibility to monitor the GRANTEE’s 
performance and the final authority to accept the services provided under this grant project agreement. If 
the services are satisfactory, the STATE’s Authorized Representative will certify acceptance on each invoice 
submitted for payment. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED

mailto:kate.franken@state.mn.us


CHB Grant Project Agreement Template FEDERAL FUNDS Version 1.10, 03/2021 
Grant Project Agreement Number 202792 

Between the Minnesota Department of Health and Goodhue County Health and Human Services 
 

Page 4 of 7 

7.2 GRANTEE’s Authorized Representative. The GRANTEE’s Authorized Representative is Nina Arneson, CHS 
Administrator, 426 West Avenue, Red Wing, MN 55066, 651-385-6115, nina.arneson@co.goodhue.mn.us, or 
his/her successor. The GRANTEE’s Authorized Representative has full authority to represent the GRANTEE in 
fulfillment of the terms, conditions, and requirements of this agreement. If the GRANTEE selects a new 
Authorized Representative at any time during this grant project agreement, the GRANTEE must immediately 
notify the STATE. 

8. Termination. 

8.1 Termination by the STATE. The STATE or GRANTEE may cancel this grant project agreement at any time, 
with or without cause, upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. 

8.2 Termination for Cause. If the GRANTEE fails to comply with the provisions of this grant project 
agreement, the State may terminate this grant project agreement without prejudice to the right of the 
STATE to recover any money previously paid. The termination shall be effective five business days after the 
STATE mails, by certified mail, return receipt requested, written notice of termination to the GRANTEE at its 
last known address. 

8.3 Termination for Insufficient Funding. The STATE may immediately terminate this grant project 
agreement if it does not obtain funding from the Minnesota legislature or other funding source; or if funding 
cannot be continued at a level sufficient to allow for the payment of the work scope covered in this grant 
project agreement. Termination must be by written (e-mail, facsimile or letter) notice to the GRANTEE. The 
STATE is not obligated to pay for any work performed after notice and effective date of the termination. 
However, the GRANTEE will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for services 
satisfactorily performed to the extent that funds are available. The STATE will not be assessed any penalty if 
this grant project agreement is terminated because of the decision of the Minnesota legislature, or other 
funding source, not to appropriate funds. The STATE must provide the GRANTEE notice of the lack of funding 
within a reasonable time of the STATE receiving notice of the same. 

9. Publicity. Any publicity given to the program, publications, or services provided from this grant agreement, 
including, but not limited to, notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and 
similar public notices prepared by or for the GRANTEE or its employees individually or jointly with others, or 
any subgrantees shall identify the STATE as a sponsoring agency and shall not be released, unless such 
release is approved in advance in writing by the STATE’S Authorized Representative. If federal funding is 
being used for this grant agreement, the federal program must also be recognized. 

 
10. Clerical Error 

Notwithstanding the Master Grant Contract Agreement, MDH reserves the right to unilaterally fix clerical 
errors contained in the Grant Contract Agreement without executing an amendment. Grantee will be 
informed of errors that have been fixed pursuant to this paragraph. 
 

11. Other Provisions.  
  

11.1 The STATE will provide-technical assistance and consultation to enable the GRANTEE to establish and 
administer a WIC Program. 

 
11.2 The STATE will provide appropriate forms and materials necessary to establish and administer a WlC 
Program. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED

mailto:nina.arneson@co.goodhue.mn.us


CHB Grant Project Agreement Template FEDERAL FUNDS Version 1.10, 03/2021 
Grant Project Agreement Number 202792 

Between the Minnesota Department of Health and Goodhue County Health and Human Services 
 

Page 5 of 7 

11.3 The STATE will provide access to 7 CFR Part 246 the Minnesota WIC Program Operations Manual, 
Minnesota Rules Chapter 4617, State policies and procedures, and other instructions and guidelines on a 
timely basis necessary to establish and administer a WIC Program. 

 
11.4 The STATE will provide training information for new GRANTEE staff. 

 
11.5   Ownership of Equipment; Insurance on and Liability for Equipment. 
a) Notwithstanding anything in the MASTER GRANT CONTRACT, any equipment, medical supplies, 

computer equipment, computer software, furniture, and furnishings purchased and/or utilized by the 
GRANTEE in the performance of its obligations under this project-agreement and related to and funded 
in part or whole by the STATE (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Equipment"), shall be the 
exclusive property of the STATE and all of the Equipment shall be remitted to the STATE by the GRANTEE 
upon completion, termination, or cancellation of this project agreement. The GRANTEE shall not use, 
willingly allow, or cause to have the Equipment used for any purpose other than performance of the 
GRANTEE'S obligations under this project agreement, without the prior written consent of the STATE. 

b) The GRANTEE shall maintain insurance on all of the Equipment at all times unless and until the STATE 
receives all the Equipment upon completion, termination, or cancellation of this project agreement. The 
insurance maintained by the GRANTEE shall cover all loss or damage to the Equipment caused by theft, 
vandalism, fire, or other casualty, and shall be in an amount sufficient to cover replacement of all 
Equipment with substantially identical items. In the event of any loss of or damage to any of the 
Equipment, including any loss or damage caused by GRANTEE or its agents or employees and any loss or 
damage from theft, vandalism, fire, or other casualty, the GRANTEE shall, at the expense of the 
GRANTEE, fully repair all damaged Equipment and replace all lost Equipment with substantially identical 
items. The GRANTEE shall not use any funds from the STATE to repair or replace any lost, stolen, or 
damaged Equipment. 

c) In the event of any computer breakdowns, including-any malfunction of computer hardware or software 
or both, the GRANTEE shall contact the Service Provider contracted by the STATE to fully repair or, if 
necessary, replace the computer hardware or software or both to enable the computer hardware and 
software to operate properly. The GRANTEE shall not, without the prior written consent of the STATE, 
modify the Equipment that is computer equipment or computer software. 
 

11.6 Ownership of Materials and Intellectual Property Rights.  
a) Notwithstanding anything in clause 10 of the MASTER GRANT CONTRACT, STATE shall own all rights, title 

and interest in all of the materials conceived or created by the GRANTEE, or its employees or 
subgrantees, either individually or jointly with others and which arise out of the performance of this 
project agreement, including any inventions, reports, studies, designs, drawings, specifications, notes, 
documents, software and documentation, computer based training modules, electronically, 
magnetically or digitally recorded material, and other work in whatever form (“materials”). 

b) The GRANTEE hereby assigns to the STATE all rights, title and interest to the MATERIALS. GRANTEE shall 
upon request of the STATE, execute all papers and perform all other acts necessary to assist the STATE 
to obtain and register copyrights, patents or other forms of protection provided by law f or    the 
MATERIALS. The MATERIALS created under this project agreement by the GRANTEE, its employees or 
subgrantees, individually or jointly with others, shall be considered “works made for hire” as defined by 
the United States Copyright Act. All the MATERIALS, whether in paper, electronic, or other form, shall be 
remitted to the STATE by the GRANTEE upon completion, termination, or cancellation of this project 
agreement. The GRANTEE, its employees and any subgrantees, shall not copy, reproduce, allow or cause 
to have the MATERIALS copied, reproduced, or used for any purpose other than performance of the 
GRANTEE'S obligations under this project agreement without the prior written consent of the STATE'S 
Authorized Representative. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



CHB Grant Project Agreement Template FEDERAL FUNDS Version 1.10, 03/2021 
Grant Project Agreement Number 202792 

Between the Minnesota Department of Health and Goodhue County Health and Human Services 
 

Page 6 of 7 

c) GRANTEE represents and warrants that MATERIALS produced or used under this project agreement do 
not and will not infringe upon any intellectual property rights of another, including but not limited to 
patents, copyrights, trade secrets, trade names, and service marks and names. GRANTEE shall   
indemnify and defend the STATE, at GRANTEE'S expense, from any action or claim brought against the 
STATE to the extent that it is based on a claim that all or part of the MATERIALS infringe upon the 
intellectual property rights of another. GRANTEE shall be responsible for payment of any and all such 
claims, demands, obligations, liabilities, costs, and damages including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorney fees arising out of this project agreement, amendments, and supplements thereto, which are 
attributable to such claims or actions. If such a claim or action arises, or in GRANTEE'S or the STATE'S 
opinion is likely to arise, GRANTEE shall at the STATE'S discretion either procure for the STATE the right 
or license to continue using the MATERIALS at issue or replace or modify the allegedly infringing 
MATERIALS. This remedy shall be in addition to and shall not be exclusive to other remedies provided by 
law. 
 

11.7 Disputes Regarding Reimbursement by GRANTEE.  If there is a dispute regarding whether or not the 
GRANTEE must reimburse the STATE any moneys under Exhibit A, clause J of this grant project agreement, 
and if the WIC Program Director decides that the GRANTEE is required to reimburse the STATE in any 
amount, then the STATE may, at its option, withhold payment under clause 4. Consideration and Terms of 
Payment of this Project agreement, regardless of whether or not GRANTEE has requested an administrative 
hearing under Exhibit A of the MASTER GRANT CONTRACT. 

 
11.8 The GRANTEE is responsible for holding any subcontracting entities to the same standards required of 
the GRANTEE in this agreement. 

 
11.9 Survival of Terms. The following paragraphs survive the expiration or cancellation of this project 
agreement: 10.3. Ownership of Materials and Intellectual Property Rights; and 10.8. Disputes Regarding 
Reimbursement by GRANTEE. 
 

12. Telecommunications Certification 
By signing this agreement Grantee certifies that, consistent with Section 889 of the John S. McCain National 
Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019, Pub. L. 115-232 (Aug. 13, 2018), Grantee does not and will 
not use any equipment, system, or service that uses “covered telecommunications equipment or services” 
(as that term is defined in Section 889 of the Act) as a substantial or essential component of any system or 
as critical technology as part of any system. Grantee will include this certification as a flow down clause in 
any contract related to this agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



CHB Grant Project Agreement Template FEDERAL FUNDS Version 1.10, 03/2021 
Grant Project Agreement Number 202792 

Between the Minnesota Department of Health and Goodhue County Health and Human Services 
 

Page 7 of 7 

 
 

 
APPROVED: 

1.     State Encumbrance Verification 
Individual certifies that funds have been encumbered  
as required by Minn. Stat. §§ 16A.15 and 16C.05. 

 
Signed:                                                                                 

Date:                                                                                    

SWIFT Contract/PO No(s).                                                   

 

2. GRANTEE 
The Grantee certifies that the appropriate persons(s) have 
executed the project agreement on behalf of the Grantee as 
required by applicable articles, bylaws, resolutions, or 
ordinances. 

3. STATE AGENCY  
Project Agreement approval and certification that STATE 
funds have been encumbered as required by Minn. Stat. 
§§ 16A.15 and 16C.05. 

By:   ____________________________________  By:  _____________________________________   

Title:  ___________________________________  Title:  ___________________________________   

Date:  ___________________________________   Date:  ________________________________   

By:  _____________________________________      

Title: ____________________________________     

Date: ___________________________________     

  
Distribution: 
• MDH (Original fully executed Grant Project Agreement) 
• Grantee 
• State Authorized Representative 

 
 
 

10/26/2021

202792/3000089371

Sarah Martin Digitally signed by Sarah Martin 
Date: 2021.10.26 10:53:04 -05'00'

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED

HHS DirectorNina Arneson



1  

 

Exhibit A. WIC GRANTEE's Duties 
Grantee shall: 

A. Perform all Local Agency duties and administer a WIC Program within its designated service area 
or population in an efficient and effective manner and in compliance with: the most recent 
edition of the Minnesota WIC Program Operations Manual (hereinafter MOM); Minnesota Rules 
Chapter 4617; 7 C.F.R. Parts 15, 15a, 15b, 246 and 3015 to 3019; 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards; and 
USDA guidelines and instructions. 

B. Offer WIC Services by the Application for the Administration of a Local WIC Program, through 
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2026 (GRANTEE’s application as may be amended by written 
agreement between the parties), and is hereby made a part of this agreement, which includes 
GRANTEE’s designated service area or population.  In cases of conflict between this agreement 
and the GRANTEE’s Application, this agreement shall govern. 

C. Employ sufficient competent professional authorities capable of performing, in accordance with 
MOM, Minnesota Rules Chapter 4617, and 7 CFR Part 246, the following duties described in 
MOM: performing WIC Program certification procedures; providing nutrition education and 
referrals; and providing services to high risk participants. 

D. Determine eligibility and certify persons eligible for the WIC Program according to established 
certification procedures, document certification actions, provide WIC Program benefits on a 
timely basis to certified persons, and reassess eligibility at the prescribed intervals. 

E. Make available appropriate health services to participants and inform applicants of the health 
services which are available. Health services may be made available through referral. 

F. Develop a nutrition education plan, including breastfeeding promotion, which:  (1) is consistent 
with 7 CFR, section 246.11, paragraph (d)(2), as amended; (2) is consistent with Minnesota 
Rules, Chapter 4617; (3) is consistent with MOM; (4) includes the criteria used to select 
participants for high-risk nutrition education; and (5) includes the criteria the GRANTEE uses to 
determine which participants will receive an Individual Nutrition Care Plan. 

G. Provide nutrition education and breastfeeding promotion to WIC Program participants in 
accordance with the GRANTEE’s Nutrition Education Plan. 

H. Serve WIC participants and perform WIC Program certification procedures using the STATE’s 
WIC Information System provided by the STATE. 

I. Establish and maintain accountability and inventory control over WIC Cards. 

J. Reimburse the STATE for payments previously paid to the GRANTEE pursuant to Clause 4 of this 
agreement for costs found to be in excess of the GRANTEE’s written grant letters;  for costs 
deemed to be improper, unallowable, or undocumented as the result of an audit, review or 
other examination; and for the cashed value of any WIC Program food benefits which may be 
stolen from or lost by the GRANTEE or issued by the GRANTEE to persons other than properly 
certified WIC Program participants or their authorized proxies. 

K. Maintain complete, accurate, documented and current program and fiscal records and files on a 
federal fiscal year basis (October 1st through the following September 30th), in accordance with 
STATE financial management requirements, rules, policies and procedures including MOM, 7 
CFR Parts 246 and 3015 to 3019, 45 CFR Part 92, and USDA guidelines and instructions, including 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



E X H I B I T  A .  W I C  G R A N T E E ' S  D U T I E S  

2  

source documentation to support WIC Program activities and expenditures made under the 
terms of this agreement. 

L. Submit timely reports to STATE, as specified in MOM or requested by STATE. 

M. During normal working hours, provide access to authorized representatives or agents of USDA, 
the Department of the Comptroller General of the United States, the STATE, the Legislative 
Auditor, the State Auditor, and any independent auditor designated by the STATE, to the 
GRANTEE’s records, documents, financial statements, and accounting procedures and practices 
related to this agreement for purposes of inspecting, auditing, or copying, and as may be 
necessary for the STATE to comply with the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended (31 U.S.C. 
section 7501 et seq.), 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. 

N. Maintain records sufficient to reflect all costs incurred by the GRANTEE in its performance of 
this agreement. Tribal follow General Services Administration (GSA) rules and regulations. 

O. Use the STATE’s WIC Information System to maintain participant records on file and have 
records available for review, audit, and evaluation. 

P. Provide local agency IT support for nonstandard images and if using local computers with the 
WIC Information System. Support the network including addressing any connectivity issues.  

Q. Comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.); Title II and Title III 
of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 as amended by the ADA Amendment Act of 
2008 (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Justice regulations at (28 CFR 
Parts 35 and 36); Executive Order 13166, "Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited 
English Proficiency." (August 11, 2000), all provisions required by the implementing regulations 
of the U.S. Department of Agriculture (7 CFR Part 15 et seq); and FNS directives and guidelines 
to the effect that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, age, sex, or 
disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Agency receives Federal 
financial assistance from FNS; and hereby gives assurance that it will immediately take measures 
necessary to effectuate this agreement.  

R. Ensure that the GRANTEE does not discriminate against any person on the grounds of race, 
color, national origin, age, sex, or disability. 

S. To permit the effective enforcement of the above clauses (P) and (Q) of this Exhibit A, compile 
data, maintain records, and submit reports as required by the STATE. 

T. Ensure that all new GRANTEE staff must be trained as specified in MOM. 

U. Cooperate with the STATE in connection with monitoring reviews performed under 7 C.F.R. § 
246.19(6). 

V. If the STATE’s report of a monitoring review of the GRANTEE contains a finding of program 
noncompliance, the GRANTEE shall submit to the STATE a corrective action plan, including 
implementation timeframes, by the deadline specified by the STATE. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



E X H I B I T  A .  W I C  G R A N T E E ' S  D U T I E S  

3  

1. If the STATE disapproves of the corrective-action plan, the GRANTEE shall submit to the 
STATE, by the deadline specified by the STATE, another corrective action plan that addresses 
the reasons for disapproval. 

2. If the STATE approves a corrective action plan, the GRANTEE shall comply with the plan. 

W. Ensure that no conflict of interest exists between the GRANTEE and the STATE. 

X. Ensure that no controlling person of any Minnesota WIC vendor and no spouse, child, or parent 
of any controlling person of any Minnesota WIC vendor: 

1. Is employed by the GRANTEE in a capacity that allows the employee access to WIC benefits; 
or, 

2. Has a direct or indirect financial interest in the GRANTEE. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



1  

 

Exhibit B. WIC Funding 
(a) Consideration and Payment. 

The GRANTEE will be paid by notification of their grant amount through annual funding letters, 
in an amount that will be based on available federal funds and the GRANTEE’s projected 
participation for the upcoming year. The GRANTEE will be reimbursed monthly based on 
claimed expenses as outlined below and in Exhibit A, Clause J of this grant agreement. 

Invoices. The State will promptly pay the GRANTEE after the GRANTEE presents an itemized 
invoice for the services actually performed and the State's Authorized Representative accepts 
the invoiced services. Invoices must be submitted according to the following schedule: Submit 
by the 20th of the month following services for the months of October through August of each 
federal fiscal year. 

The GRANTEE shall submit the September invoice to the STATE on or before December 20th 
following the end of each federal fiscal year (September 30th). Payments for said federal fiscal 
year might not be made for claims filed after this date. 

The STATE agrees to: 

1. Provide grant funding on a per participant basis, or for GRANTEEs with fewer than 
100 participants served per month, funding at a base level, in an amount, which is 
determined periodically based on available federal funds. 

2. Provide supplemental funding to reimburse GRANTEE for allowable grant expenses 
such as excess clinic travel costs, participation in STATE-sponsored work groups or 
STATE-sponsored trainings, or for other activities as approved by the STATE. 
Determination for the amount of such supplemental funding shall be made by the 
STATE after reviewing the availability of federal funds for those purposes.   

(b) Total Obligation. 

The total obligation of the STATE for all compensation and reimbursements to the GRANTEE 
under this grant agreement will not exceed an amount established in written funding letters, 
and available federal funds, which upon execution of the Commissioner of Health shall be 
incorporated into this Grant Agreement. Payment of services shall be contingent upon receipt 
of funds from USDA. The STATE may, at the option of the STATE, withhold from such payment 
any or all amounts for which the GRANTEE is required to reimburse the STATE under Clause J of 
Exhibit A. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



1  

 

Exhibit C. Peer Duties 
Grantee shall: 

A. Provide peer breastfeeding services to WIC participants within the Grantees service area. The 
Grantee will notify MDH if any changes occur in the service area. MDH reserves the right to 
adjust the amount to the expenditure plan and current budget based on changes in the service 
area. 

B. Ensure that the peer support provided will supplement the breastfeeding education and support 
currently provided by WIC. The required breastfeeding and nutrition education contacts must 
still be provided. Acceptance of the grant agreement and adding peer support to your agency’s 
WIC services must not compromise the required WIC nutrition education or breastfeeding 
contacts. 

C. Submit a yearly work plan once approved by MDH WIC PEER Coordinator, incorporated into this 
grant agreement. The work plan should be in the format provided by MDH that includes 
activities and events leading to the outcomes identified below. The work plan shall be submitted 
by December 31st of each calendar year or as indicated by MDH WIC Peer Coordinator. If the 
Grantee does not revise the proposed work plan or if the revised work plan is not approved by 
MDH, then MDH shall terminate this grant agreement effective January 31 of the fiscal year for 
which the then-current work plan and budget plan are written, notwithstanding Clause 14 of 
WIC Grant Agreement. MDH shall mail, by certified mail, return receipt requested, written 
notice of such termination to the Grantee at its last known address. Outcomes for work plan: 

1. The WIC PEER Breastfeeding Support Program(PBSP) is implemented to increase 
breastfeeding support available to WIC participants, and in compliance with Food and 
Nutrition Services(FNS) requirements and MDH policy. 

2. Current staffing levels and expected numbers of participants being served by peer staff are 
provided.   

3. Peer services are available outside usual clinic hours and environment. 
4. Management and coordination of the peer program is sufficient. 
5. Adequate supervision and monitoring (spot checks) of peer counselors is provided. 
6. WIC peer services are integrated with other WIC services.  
7. Community partnerships and outreach are established to enhance the effectiveness of the 

peer program. 
8. Training and continuing education for peers and peer managers/coordinators is conducted 

and ongoing. 
9. Access to managers/coordinators and International Board Certified Lactation Consultant 

(IBCLC) for assistance is provided for problems outside the peers’ scope of practice. 
10. Peer breastfeeding support program is evaluated and data is entered into WIC computer 

system in a timely manner. 
11. The Grantee may fulfill any of its obligations under this grant agreement through 

subcontractors. 

D. Submit an annual budget once approved by MDH WIC PEER Coordinator, it will be incorporated 
into this grant agreement. The budget narrative in the format provided by the MDH WIC Peer 
Coordinator for the subsequent federal fiscal year. Funding will be determined by the MDH 
office yearly based on availability of USDA FNS funding. The budget shall be submitted to the 
MDH WIC Peer Coordinator by July 31, and revisions, if required by the MDH, shall be submitted 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



E X H I B I T  C :   P E E R  G R A N T E E  D U T I E S  

2  

by August 15. Funding notifications will be sent in September or earlier if available to local 
agency coordinators and directors. 

E. Support the goals and development of the WIC Peer Program by providing evaluation of and 
feedback about the program. Complete and submit an interim progress report as requested by 
the MDH or USDA, including, but not limited to any required contracts or similar agreements; 
the number of peers and participants served; updates about the peer program; comments from 
peers, participants and WIC staff, and recommendations for others who are interested in peer 
breastfeeding support.  The mid-year progress report is due to the MDH WIC Peer Coordinator 
by July 31 or as indicated by the Peer Coordinator. 

F. Assign adequate staff to manage and implement the WIC Peer Program, provide supervision and 
back-up for peer breastfeeding support staff and assure that peer support staff meet the Food 
and Nutrition Service (FNS) definition of breastfeeding peer support.   

G. Provide MDH Authorized Representative with written notification of changes in key staff, 
including the IBCLC, supervisor(s) and peer program manager. 

H. Participate in the two required in-state meetings per year and send appropriate staff, or 
approved alternate staff, who will be involved in implementing the peer support program and 
identified in the local agency grant application. 

I. Provide initial and ongoing training for peer support staff as identified in the current work plan. 
Include confidentiality/data practices in training for peer support staff.  

J. Submit invoices for project expenses and progress reports by due date and maintain 
records/time studies to document time spent on this grant agreement. 

K. Maintain records sufficient to reflect all costs incurred by the Grantee in its performance of this 
grant agreement. Tribal Agencies follow General Services Administration (GSA) rules and 
regulations. 

L. Have an IBCLC, or other designated staff who has been trained in lactation management, 
available to peer support staff, at a minimum by phone, after regular hours, as designated in 
work plan, to handle questions that are beyond the scope of the peer support staff, and 
available to travel to all sites included in this grant agreement, if needed.  

M. Have all Gramtee WIC Peer Program staff review background materials on peer support, 
including the materials from the latest USDA training. Materials are available from the State WIC 
Program. 

N. Use the FNS training curriculum for providing peer training. Documentation of initial and 
ongoing training must be maintained and made available for review. The FNS training curriculum 
is available through the State WIC Program. 

O. Have documentation of meetings and trainings for peer support staff, records of peer spot 
checks and review of contact forms. Documentation is maintained and available to State WIC 
staff for review upon request. 

P. If Grantee will fulfill any of its obligations under this grant agreement through a subcontractor, 
provide a signed copy of any subcontracts this agreement to MDH Authorized Representative. 

Q. Administer a WIC PBS Program within its designated service area or population in an efficient 
and effective manner and in compliance with: the most recent edition of the Minnesota WIC 
Program Operations Manual (hereinafter MOM); Minnesota Rules Chapter 4617; 7 C.F.R. Parts 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



E X H I B I T  C :   P E E R  G R A N T E E  D U T I E S  

3  

15, 15a, 15b, 246 and 3015 to 3019; 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards; and USDA guidelines and instructions. 

R. Offer PBS Program services by the Application for the Administration of a Local WIC PBS 
Program, through January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2026 (Grantee’s application as may be 
amended by written agreement between the parties), and is hereby made a part of this 
agreement, and includes Grantee’s designated service area or population. In cases of conflict 
between this agreement and the Grantee’s Application, this agreement shall govern. 

S. Employ sufficient peer counselors and lead peer staff capable of performing, in accordance with 
MOM, Minnesota Rules Chapter 4617, and 7 CFR Part 246. 

T. Determine eligibility for persons eligible for the WIC PBS Program according to established 
referral procedures. 

U. Reimburse MDH for payments previously paid to the Grantee pursuant to Clause 4 of this 
agreement for costs found to be in excess of the Grantee’s written grant letters; for costs 
deemed to be improper, unallowable, or undocumented as the result of an audit, review or 
other examination. See Exhibit D Payments (b) Allowable Costs. 

V. Maintain complete, accurate, documented and current program and fiscal records and files on a 
federal fiscal year basis (October 1st through the following September 30th), in accordance with 
MDH financial management requirements, rules, policies and procedures including MOM, 7 CFR 
Parts 246 and 3015 to 3019, 45 CFR Part 92, and USDA guidelines and instructions, including 
source documentation to substantiate WIC PBS Program activities and expenditures made under 
the terms of this agreement. 

W. Submit timely reports to MDH, as specified in MOM or requested by MDH. 

X. During normal working hours, provide access to authorized representatives or agents of USDA, 
the Department of the Comptroller General of the United States, MDH, the Legislative Auditor, 
the State Auditor, and any independent auditor designated by MDH, to the Grantee’s records, 
documents, financial statements, and accounting procedures and practices related to this grant 
agreement for purposes of inspecting, auditing, or copying, and as may be necessary for MDH to 
comply with the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended (31 U.S.C. section 7501 et seq.), 2 CFR 
Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards. 

Y. Use MDH WIC Information System (IS) to maintain participant records on file and have records 
available for review, audit, and evaluation. 

Z. Provide local agency IT support for nonstandard images and if using local computers with the 
WIC IS.  Support the network including addressing any connectivity issues. 

AA. Comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.); Title II and Title III 
of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 as amended by the ADA Amendment Act of 
2008 (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Justice regulations at (28 CFR 
Parts 35 and 36); Executive Order 13166, "Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited 
English Proficiency." (August 11, 2000), all provisions required by the implementing regulations 
of the U.S. Department of Agriculture (7 CFR Part 15 et seq); and FNS directives and guidelines 
to the effect that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, age, sex, or 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



E X H I B I T  C :   P E E R  G R A N T E E  D U T I E S  

4  

disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Agency receives Federal 
financial assistance from FNS; and hereby gives assurance that it will immediately take measures 
necessary to effectuate this agreement.  

BB. Ensure that the Grantee does not discriminate against any person on the grounds of race, color, 
national origin, age, sex, or disability. 

CC. Permit the effective enforcement of clauses (BB) and (CC) of this agreement, compile data, 
maintain records, and submit reports as required by the MDH. 

DD. Ensure that all new Grantee’s peer staff must be trained as specified in MOM. 

EE. Cooperate with the MDH in connection with monitoring reviews performed under 7 C.F.R. § 
246.19(6). 

FF. If MDH report of a monitoring review of the Grantee contains a finding of program 
noncompliance, the Grantee shall submit to the MDH a corrective action plan, including 
implementation timeframes, by the deadline specified by MDH. 

1. If the MDH disapproves of the corrective-action plan, the Grantee shall submit to the MDH, 
by the deadline specified by MDH, another corrective action plan that addresses the reasons 
for disapproval. 

2. If MDH approves a corrective action plan, the Grantee shall comply with the plan. 

GG. Ensure that no conflict of interest exists between the Grantee and MDH. 

HH. Ensure that WIC conflict of interest policies are followed by Grantee and peer counselors. 

II. Must comply with 7 CFR Part 246.26 and MOM as it applies to all WIC data created, collected, 
received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated as a part of this grant agreement. WIC data 
that individually identify an applicant or participant and/or family member(s) are private data 
and must be protected as such. 

 

 

 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



1  

 

Exhibit D - Peer Funding 

Consideration 
(a) Compensation. The Grantee will be paid through yearly funding letters based on available 

funding in consideration for all services performed by the Grantee pursuant to this grant 
agreement, not to exceed an amount established in written funding letters. The Grantee will be 
reimbursed on a quarterly basis based on claimed expenses as outlined in Exhibit D, payment 
(a).  

(b) Minnesota Department of Health(MDH) reserves the right to reduce funding for the Grantee if 
the Grantee is not in compliance with WIC PEER Breatfeeding Services (PBS) requirements 
and/or not determined to be using their peer funds in a prudent and appropriate manner 
and/or it is determined that a reduced amount of funding will be sufficient to sustain the PBS 
program. 

(c) Budget Modifications. Modifications greater than 10 percent of any budget line item in the most 
recently approved budget requires prior written approval from MDH and must be indicated on 
submitted reports. Failure to obtain prior written approval for modifications greater than 10 
percent of any budget line item may result in denial of modification request. Modifications 
equal to or less than 10 percent of any budget line item are permitted without prior approval 
from MDH, provided that such modification is indicated on submitted reports and that the total 
obligation of MDH for all compensation and reimbursements to the Grantee shall not exceed 
the total obligation listed in 4.3 Total Obligation in this grant agreement. 

Payment 
(a) The Grantee shall provide MDH a completed Claim for Reimbursement/Report of Expenditures 

form, which includes:  a summary of the funds actually expended during the report period 
(calendar quarter) by budget line item, and the amount of funds expended federal fiscal year-to-
date (October 1st through September 30th).  Claims for Reimbursement are due the 3rd Friday 
after the end of the calendar quarter or the date indicated on the most recent claim form 
provided by MDH.   
The Grantee shall provide MDH with an annual budget by the deadline specified by MDH.  MDH 
shall specify the deadline in a letter to be mailed or e-mailed to the Grantee at least four weeks 
before the deadline.  The annual budget must indicate the Grantee's federal fiscal year (October 
1st through September 30th) anticipated costs, and all budget data prescribed by MDH in its 
letter to the Grantee. 

(b) Allowable Costs.  These funds are earmarked by FNS for WIC breastfeeding peer support 
programs and may only be used to develop activities necessary to sustain a successful peer 
support program.  Allowable costs include: 
Compensation for peer counselor managers, counselors and peer support staff as long as 
charges are supported by appropriate time studies or logs.  
Related costs such as training costs; communication expenses for participant contacts; travel for 
home and hospital visits; recruitment of peer counseling staff; purchase of demonstration 
materials. 
All costs must be properly supported by paid invoices and usage logs. Items and materials for 
general distribution to WIC participants (with the exception of materials to promote the peer 
counseling program,) are not allowable costs under this funding. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3D3F6BF-766E-4C92-B625-51D05769FDED



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: A3D3F6BF766E4C92B62551D05769FDED Status: Sent

Subject: Please DocuSign: Goodhue WIC-PEER grant 2022-26 final

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 17 Signatures: 0 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 2 Initials: 0 Anna Borgstrom

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

625 Robert St. N

PO Box 64975

St. Paul, MN  55164

anna.borgstrom@state.mn.us

IP Address: 156.98.136.27  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             10/27/2021 10:31:06 AM

Holder: Anna Borgstrom

             anna.borgstrom@state.mn.us

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: Department of Health Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Nina Arneson

nina.arneson@co.goodhue.mn.us

HHS Director

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 10/27/2021 10:37:35 AM

Viewed: 10/28/2021 9:30:40 AM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

MDH FiM with Delegated Authority to Execute 

Grants/Contracts

Signing Group: MDH FiM with Delegated Authority to

 Execute Grants/Contracts

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Rebecca Gruenes

rebecca.gruenes@state.mn.us

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign



Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Michelle Gawboy

michelle.gawboy@state.mn.us

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

FiM for full executed copy

health.FM-Grants-Contracts@state.mn.us

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 10/27/2021 10:37:35 AM

Payment Events Status Timestamps



 
GOODHUE COUNTY  
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (GCHHS)  
 
 
 
 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

 
Requested 
Board Date: November 16, 2021 Staff Lead: Mike Zorn 

 
Consent 
Agenda: 

 
Yes             
 No 

Attachments: 
 

 Yes       
 No 

Action 
Requested: 

Approve contract for Computer Management for Human 
Services (CMHS) Support for Agency Collection System (ACS)  

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
TriMin Systems, Inc. is a provider of software support for Goodhue County Health and Human 
Services Agency Collection System (ACS) program.  Attached please find a renewal service 
agreement for 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Goodhue County HHS recommends approval as requested.    
 
   



TriMin Systems, Inc. 
2277 Highway 36 West, Suite 250, Roseville, MN 55113 

PH (651) 636-7667 Page 1 of 6 

ACS / SWS Support Services Agreement for 2022 

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN 

_______________________________________________________ 
(County) 

and 

TRIMIN SYSTEMS, INC. 

This Agreement made by and between ________________________________________________________________, 
hereinafter referred to as the "County" and TriMin Systems Inc., 2277 Highway 36 West, Suite 250, St. Paul, Minnesota, 
hereinafter referred to as "TriMin".  Where the Agreement refers to "User Group", it is understood to mean all counties 
who are parties to this Agreement. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to retain professional services to obtain computer programming and technical assistance 
for the maintenance and support of computer systems now in use by the County and a number of other counties; and 

WHEREAS, the County has undertaken to retain professional services as described above as a member (or past  

member) of a group of Minnesota county welfare and human services agencies and other entities, previously known as 
Computer Management for Human Services (CMHS); and 

WHEREAS, TriMin has and will be expected to render support services hereunder. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements contained herein, and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

I. Systems to be supported

TriMin agrees to provide computer programming, technical assistance, and related services to support and
maintain the systems and systems components including, but not limited to: 

A. Agency Collection System (ACS)

B. Social Welfare System (SWS)

Goodhue County Health and Human Services

Goodhue County Health and Human Services



TriMin Systems, Inc. 
2277 Highway 36 West, Suite 250, Roseville, MN 55113 

PH (651) 636-7667 Page 2 of 6 

II. Support Definition

A. Support: TriMin will provide remote application support for County via telephone and email.  Support
includes the following aspects:

1. Consultation and problem assistance, as scheduled
2. New staff orientation/overview training, as scheduled
3. Bug Fixes, as needed
4. Mandated Modifications, per II-C below
5. Invoicing of charges to the County

B. Special Projects: "Special Projects" are those projects which the User Group (the group of counties using
ACS and/or SWS) may authorize from time to time above the fixed annual amount for Support.  A Special
Project shall be initiated upon receipt of written notification from the User Group, with individual Counties
each deciding to participate upon knowing the cost of the project and their expected contribution. Special
project charges will only apply if a given county has agreed to said project and given approval to participate.
Counties that do not participate would not receive the benefit of the project.

C. Mandated Systems Modifications: "Mandated Systems Modifications" are those systems modifications
necessitated by mandates or service program changes imposed by federal or state laws, rules, or
regulations.  TriMin agrees that Mandated Systems Modifications shall be undertaken without delay and with
the understanding that, with respect to completion of the modifications, time is of the essence. Mandated
Systems Modifications shall take precedence over any other project or maintenance service being
performed pursuant to this Agreement.

Mandated Systems Modifications services shall be included in the scope of this support agreement,
provided that the estimated hours for any particular mandated modification is less than or equal to 40 hours
of effort.

In the event that a Mandated Systems Modification effort is deemed to be greater than 40 hours the
Mandated Systems Modifications services shall be approved by the User Group and funded by Counties
participating in the Annual Support for a given application (i.e. ACS or SWS).

Mandated Systems Modifications shall be subject to the cost allocation billing rates and special conditions
set forth in this Section and in Sections III. and IV. below.

Mandated Systems Modifications shall be initiated upon receipt of authorization from the User Group.
Counties not wishing to participate may opt out, but will not receive the system modification.

D. Direct Support: "Direct Support" is that assistance provided to the County or to a group of counties at
its/their request and is not Shared Support.  Direct Support includes, but is not limited to, start-up services
for the County, special seminars or training or modifications for a county or counties not requested by the
User Group as a whole.

III. Allocation of Charges and Costs

A. Charges and costs for Support, Special Proiects, and Mandated Systems Modifications, as defined in
Section II-A, B, and C above, shall be billed to the County.

B. Charges and costs for Direct Support, as defined in Section II-D, above, shall be chargeable to the County
requesting such services, and TriMin shall bill the County for Direct Support.   Direct support charges and
costs shall be itemized according to type of services.



TriMin Systems, Inc. 
2277 Highway 36 West, Suite 250, Roseville, MN 55113 

PH (651) 636-7667 Page 3 of 6 

IV. Billings of Charges and Costs for Counties that submit signed agreement by December 17, 2021

A. TriMin shall bill the County the charges and costs for Support services, as defined in Section II, above, at a
flat rate as set forth below, and per the system(s) used and selected below by the county (per “x” in
square(s) below):

□ Annual Support for ACS, paid as one-time charge (one billing): $1,320

□ Annual Support for SWS, paid as one-time charge (one billing): $1,320

B. TriMin shall bill the County the charges and costs for Special Projects as defined in Section II-B, above, at
the hourly rates, set forth in Section IV-D, below. Such billing shall identify the system being supported.

C. Invoices pursuant to Section IV-A and IV-B above, shall be billed no more than 30 days in advance to the
County, annually for charges in section IV-A above, and on a quarterly basis for charges related to Section
IV-B (if any), and shall be paid by the county within forty-five (45) days of the date of the invoice.

D. The hourly rates charged by TriMin during the duration of this Agreement shall be the following:

$175 per hour 

E. Non-payment and remedies of TriMin: In the event that the County does not pay TriMin, within forty-five (45)
days of the date of the invoice, the amount due pursuant to the Annual invoice, TriMin shall have the option
to terminate its obligation to render further services to the County upon fourteen (14) days written notice
thereof.

V. Allowance for Cost of Additional Services

Special Projects and Mandated Systems Modifications, as defined in Sections II-B and II-C, above, may only be
billed to County if approved by the User Group prior to commencement of services being performed on County’s
behalf.  The actual expenditure of this allowance is only authorized as defined in Sections II-B and II-C above.

VI. Warranties of the Parties

A. TriMin represents and warrants as follows:

1. TriMin represents and warrants that any modifications, enhancements, or related products furnished
pursuant to Section I above are designed to and will meet the functional and performance
specifications and standards to be agreed upon by the parties.

2. TriMin represents and warrants that the modifications or enhancements and related products are, or
shall be when completed and delivered hereunder, original work products of TriMin and that neither
the modifications, enhancements, and related products nor any of their elements nor the use thereof
shall violate or infringe upon any patent, copyrights, or trade secret.

B. The County represents and warrants as follows:

1. The County represents, warrants, and covenants that it will provide the cooperation and assistance of
its personnel, as reasonably required, and as would be necessary for the completion of TriMin's
services hereunder, to the extent that the services are being rendered for the County and for the
County activity or system involved.

2. The County represents and warrants that it will make prompt and full disclosure to TriMin of any
information regarding the government requirements and regulations related to the government
program and that the system services.

X



TriMin Systems, Inc. 
2277 Highway 36 West, Suite 250, Roseville, MN 55113 

PH (651) 636-7667 Page 4 of 6 

VII. Other Conditions

A. Entire Agreement; Requirement of a Writing: Except where negotiations are otherwise authorized in the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed that the entire agreement of the parties is contained herein, and that
this Agreement supersedes all oral agreements and negotiations between the parties relating to the subject
matter hereof, as well as any previous Agreement presently in effect between the parties relating to the
subject matter hereof.

Any alterations, amendments, deletions, or waivers of the provisions of this Agreement shall be valid only 
when expressed in writing and duly signed by the authorized representatives of the parties. 

B. Non-Assignment: TriMin shall not assign any interest in the Agreement without the prior written consent of
the County thereto, provided, however, that claims for money due or to become due to TriMin from the
County under this Agreement may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or other financial institutions
without such approval.

C. Conflicts of Interest. TriMin covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest,
direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance under this Agreement.
TriMin further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no persons having any such conflicting
interest shall be employed.

D. Subcontracting. None of the work or services covered by this Agreement, and properly authorized by the
User Group, shall be subcontracted without prior written approval of the User Group.

Said written consent shall not be unreasonably withheld in the event that TriMin shall reasonably request the 
authority to delegate or subcontract or consult regarding services to be provided hereunder and shall do so 
in writing except in the event of emergency, and shall request such authority only as to qualified personnel 
or entities, all of which shall be without any release of the responsibility of TriMin hereunder to the County for 
the services provided. 

E. Expenses Incurred: No Payment shall be made under this Agreement for any expenses incurred in a
manner contrary to any provision contained herein or in a manner inconsistent with any federal, state, or
local law, rule, or regulations.

F. Independent Contractor: For the purpose of this Agreement, TriMin shall be deemed an independent
contractor, and not an employee of the County or the User Group. Any and all employees, members, or
associates of TriMin or other persons, while engaged in the work or services required to be performed by
TriMin under this Agreement, shall not be considered employees of the County or the User Group; and any
and all claims that may or might arise on behalf of said employees or other persons as a consequence of
any act or omission on the part of said employees or TriMin, shall in no way be the obligation or
responsibility of the County or the User Group.

G. Liability: In recognition of the fact that the software covered by this agreement is not owned by TriMin, and
that TriMin has no control of the use of the software by the County, TriMin's liability in performance of this
Agreement shall be satisfied by its maintaining in full force and effect professional liability insurance as set
forth in Section VII-I-4, below.  In no event shall TriMin be liable for any consequential, indirect, special,
punitive or incidental damages, whether foreseeable or unforeseeable. The limitations of damages does not
apply to indemnification claims or data practice violations.

H. Disclaimer of Warranties: Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, there are no warranties, express
or implied, including but not limited to implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular
purpose.

I. Indemnification: Each party shall be liable for its own acts to the extent provided by law and hereby agrees
to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the other, its officers and employees against any and all liability,
loss, costs, damages, expenses, claims or actions, including attorney’s fees which the other, its officers and



TriMin Systems, Inc. 
2277 Highway 36 West, Suite 250, Roseville, MN 55113 

PH (651) 636-7667 Page 5 of 6 

employees may hereafter sustain, incur or be the party, its agents, servants or employees, in the execution 
or performance or failure to adequately perform its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. 

J. Insurance: TriMin, for the benefit of itself, the County, and the User Group, at all times during the term of this
Agreement, shall maintain and keep in full force and effect the following.

1. A single limit, combined limit, or excess umbrella automobile liability insurance policy, if applicable,
covering agency-owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used regularly in provision of services under
this Agreement, in an amount of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for
combined single limit.

2. A single limit or combined limit or excess umbrella general liability insurance policy of an amount of not
less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) for property damage arising from one (1) occurrences, two
million dollars ($2,000,000) for total bodily injury including death and/or damages arising from one (1)
occurrence, and two million dollars ($2,000,000) for total personal injury and/or damages arising from
one (1) occurrence.  Such policy shall also include contractual liability coverage.

3. Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance

4. Professional liability (errors and omissions) insurance in an amount of not less than one million five
hundred thousand and no/100th dollars ($1,500,000.00).

5. TriMin will provide the certificates of insurance as requested and provide that the insurance carrier will
notify the User Group in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to any reduction, cancellation, or material
alteration in TriMin's insurance coverage.

K. Local Alterations: For each of the systems supported under this contract, the code maintained by TriMin
shall be designated the "Base System".  The parties to Agreement agree to accept the base system and
modifications to the base system as approved by the User Group.  TriMin shall not be liable for claims
arising from local alterations.  The term "Local Alterations" shall include, but not be limited to, any software
modification, and any modification to system operations contrary to those specified in the system
documentation.

L. Data Practices: All data collected, created, received, maintained, disseminated or used for any purposes in
the course of TriMin's performance of this Agreement is governed by the Minnesota Government Data
Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Chapter 13, and any other applicable state statutes and rules adopted to
implement the Act as well as other state and federal laws on data privacy. TriMin agrees to abide by these
statutes, rules and regulations currently in effect and as they may be amended. TriMin designates Joe
McNiff, as its "responsible authority" pursuant to the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act for purposes
of this Agreement, the individual responsible for the collection, reception, maintenance, dissemination, and
use of any data on individuals and other government data including summary data.

M. Force Majeure: TriMin shall not be held responsible for delay or failure to perform when such delay or failure
is due to any of the following uncontrollable circumstances: fire, flood, epidemic, strikes, wars, acts of God,
unusually severe weather, acts of public authorities, or delays or defaults caused by public carriers.

N. Severability: The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any paragraph, section, subdivision,
sentence, clause, or other phrase of this Agreement is, for any reason, held to be contrary to the law or
contrary to any rule or regulation having the force and effect of law, such decision shall not affect the
remaining provisions of this Agreement.

O. Governing Laws: The laws of the State of Minnesota shall govern as to the interpretation, validity, and effect
of this Agreement.

P. Non-Discrimination: In carrying out the terms of this Agreement, TriMin shall not discriminate against any
employee, applicant for employment, or other person, supplier, or contractor, because of race, color,
religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, disability, or public assistance.



TriMin Systems, Inc. 
2277 Highway 36 West, Suite 250, Roseville, MN 55113 

PH (651) 636-7667 Page 6 of 6 

Q. Applicability of Uniform Commercial Code: Except to the extent the provisions of this Agreement are clearly
inconsistent therewith, this Agreement shall be governed by the applicable provisions of the Uniform
Commercial Code. To the extent this Agreement entails delivery or performance of services, such services
shall be deemed "goods" within the meaning of the Uniform Commercial Code, except when deeming such
services as "goods" would result in a clearly unreasonable interpretation.

R. Whereas Clauses: The matters set forth in the "Whereas" clauses on page (1) hereof are incorporated into
and made a part of this Agreement.

S. Paragraph Headings: The paragraph and subparagraph headings used in this Agreement are for reference
purposes only and shall not be deemed to be a part of this Agreement.

T. Pursuant to Minn. Stat. §16C.05, Subd.5, the Contractor agrees that the County, the State Auditor, or any of
their duly authorized representatives at any time during normal business hours and as often as they may
reasonably deem necessary, shall have access to and the right to examine, audit, excerpt, and transcribe
any books, documents, papers, records, etc., which are pertinent to the accounting practices and
procedures of the Contractor and involve transactions relating to this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to
maintain these records for a period of six years from the date of termination of this Agreement.

U. Liability of the County shall be governed by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 466 (Tort Liability,
Political Subdivisions) and other applicable law. This Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by the County
of limitations on liability provided by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 466 or other applicable laws.

V. Duration

The duration of this Agreement shall be January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2022, inclusive.

W. Cancellation

This Agreement is binding for the duration of the agreement (1 year) and may not be canceled by the County
or by TriMin within the contract period.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed intending to be bound thereby. 

Accepted and Agreed for: Accepted and Agreed for: 

County: TriMin Systems, Inc.: 

Signed By: Signed By: 

Name: Name: Joe McNiff 

Title: Title: Vice President 

Date: Date: 

Goodhue

Nina Arneson

Director GCHHS



 
GOODHUE COUNTY  
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (GCHHS)  
 
 
 
 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

 
Requested 
Board Date: November 16, 2021 Staff Lead: Kathy Rolfer 

 
Consent 
Agenda: 

 
Yes             
 No 

Attachments: 
 

 Yes       
 No 

Action 
Requested: 

Approve Minnesota Family Investment Program (MFIP) 
Biennial Service Agreement (BSA). 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Minnesota Family Investment Program (MFIP) is Minnesota’s public assistance program for 
low-income families with children. Federal funding from Temporary Assistance for Needy 
Families (TANF) block grant is used to fund MFIP at a state level. MFIP provides cash 
assistance, food support, childcare, health care and employment services assistance to eligible 
families with children under the age of 18.  MFIP recipients are required to participate in work or 
related activities to maintain eligibility and are subject to a lifetime limit of 60 months of eligibility. 
 
Every other year, counties are required to prepare and submit a biennial BSA for the MFIP 
program. For this agreement period, Goodhue County’s annual allocation is $438,684.00.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    Goodhue County HHS Recommends Approval as Presented.  
    







































Promote, Strengthen and Protect the Health  
of Individuals, Families and Communities! 
Equal Opportunity Employer 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS 

 
GOODHUE COUNTY  
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (GCHHS)  
 

 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

Requested 
Board Date: November 16, 2021 Staff Lead: Mike Zorn 

 
Consent 
Agenda: 

 
Yes             
 No 

Attachments: 
 

 Yes       
 No 

Action 
Requested: Approve October 2021 HHS Warrant Registers 

 
BACKGROUND: This is a summary of Goodhue County Health and Human Services Warrant 
Registers for October 2021. 
 

  Date of Warrant   Check No. Series   Total Batch 
       

IFS October 1, 2021 ACH 34469 34496  $8,274.93 
IFS October 1, 2021  458670 458747  $116,208.22 

       
IFS October 8, 2021 ACH 34512 34525  $33,795.26 
IFS October 8, 2021  458820 458848  $33,795.26 

       

IFS 
October 15, 

2021 ACH 34551 34563  $14,510.16 

IFS 
October 15, 

2021  458889 458913  $6,771.57 
       

IFS 
October 22, 

2021 ACH 34564 34578  $21,061.43 

IFS 
October 22, 

2021  458914 48954  $52,931.50 
       

IFS 
October 29, 

2021 ACH 34680 34707  $5,767.39 

IFS 
October 29, 

2021  459078 459158  $41,167.12 
       

SSIS 
October 29, 

2021 ACH 34615 34638  $63,141.22 

SSIS 
October 29, 

2021  459027 459074  $180,776.23 

IFS 
October 29, 

2021 ACH 34639 34679  $3,192.92 

IFS 
October 29, 

2021  459075 459077  $2,409.29 
       

    Total  $583,802.50 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Goodhue County HHS Recommends Approval as Presented. 

https://www.health.state.mn.us/communities/practice/ta/accreditation.html
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS


Promote, Strengthen and Protect the Health  
of Individuals, Families and Communities! 
Equal Opportunity Employer 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS 

 
GOODHUE COUNTY  
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (GCHHS)  
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

 

Requested 
Board Date: November 16, 2021 Staff Lead: Kris Johnson & 

Brooke Hawkenson 
 
Consent 
Agenda: 

 
Yes             
 No 

Attachments: 
 

 Yes       
 No 

Action 
Requested: 

Approve and sign Interagency Agreement between 
GCHHS and C.A.R.E. Clinic for an existing HHS position 
as a shared nursing position.   

 
BACKGROUND: 
Goodhue County Health and Human Services (CGHHS) and the C.A.R.E. Clinic are excited to 
announce a new partnership between the two agencies that will result in increased collaboration and 
improved access to both agencies for community members.  The agencies have created a shared 
position for a nurse who will serve as the Nurse Manager for the C.A.R.E. Clinic and the primary 
Disease Prevention and Control Nurse (DP&C) for GCHHS.   
 
Our agencies agree that a shared nursing position could provide immense mutual benefits for both 
agencies and our community as a whole, including: 

• Expanded access to health care for underserved residents. 
• Connecting GCHHS customers to C.A.R.E. Clinic services and C.A.R.E. Clinic customers to 

GCHHS services.   
• Utilizing the mutual expertise of both agencies to provide comprehensive health education at 

individual and community levels to prevent disease, improve health and ultimately reduce 
health care costs for the community.   

The COVID-19 pandemic has brought into sharp focus the need for intensive collaboration among all 
community health partners in order to assure the ongoing safety and health of all individuals in 
Goodhue County.  Throughout the pandemic, the C.A.R.E. Clinic and GCHHS have been close 
partners, and we seek to expand and solidify this trusted partnership.  
 
As a Community Health Board (CHB) and Local Public Health agency, GCHHS is responsible for the 
development and maintenance of community health services.   Ensuring access to health services, 
forming community partnerships, identifying gaps, addressing health equity, preventing communicable 
disease, improving the health of residents and providing health services are just some of core functions 
of Local Public Health agencies.   
 
The mission of the C.A.R.E. Clinic is to contribute to the Community by improving health care Access, 
connecting people to Resources, and promoting health Education.  The C.A.R.E. Clinic is a non-profit 
that meets a vital need by providing health care for underserved low-income residents of Goodhue 
County and Lake City, MN.   
 
 
 

https://www.health.state.mn.us/communities/practice/ta/accreditation.html
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS


2 

 
The mission of the C.A.R.E. Clinic compliments an important statutory responsibility of GCHHS and 
therefore provides an ideal opportunity for partnership between the two agencies. Furthermore,  
the 21st Century Public Health framework, which outlines our foundational responsibilities as a public 
health agency, includes a strong focus on community partnerships, health equity, prevention and 
health improvement, and access to health services.   The C.A.R.E. Clinic provides access to health 
services and preventative care for a highly vulnerable population including people who are uninsured 
or underinsured.  The C.A.R.E. Clinic also compliments many foundational public health 
responsibilities.    
 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT: 
The Interagency Agreement outlines the details of this arrangement.  The nurse will be an employee 
of Goodhue County Health and Human Services, responsible for overseeing the Disease Prevention 
and Control responsibilities for GCHHS.   This includes:  

• Manage immunization programs 
• Oversee the DP&C aspects of the agency’s pandemic response including immunization 
• Coordinate the agency’s tuberculosis control responsibilities 
• Assess data regarding communicable disease and consulting with community agencies  
• Grant management and report writing 
• Represent the agency on regional and state DP&C collaborations and boards  

The nurse will also serve as the Nurse Manager for the C.A.R.E. Clinic, which includes:  
• Provide direct support to staff, volunteers, committees, and board of directors 
• Communicate with partners and the community at large 
• Clinic Management:  Lead or delegate responsibility for all aspect of the clinic’s medical 

and mental health programs 
• Assure continuity of care between patients and the larger medical community 
• Management of documentation 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Goodhue County HHS Recommends Approval as Presented. 

https://www.health.state.mn.us/communities/practice/schsac/workgroups/docs/201906StrengtheningANewFramework.pdf


   P a g e  | 1  

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement made and entered into by and between the County of Goodhue, 426 West Ave, 
Red Wing, MN 55066, through its Health and Human Services Department hereafter referred to 
as the “County” and the C.A.R.E. Clinic, 906 College Ave, Red Wing, MN 55066, hereafter 
referred to as the “Clinic”. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 
WHEREAS, this agreement is being entered into between the parties for the sole 
purpose of defining the roles and responsibilities of the parties in relation to the co-
location of a Goodhue County Public Health Disease Prevention and Control Nurse at 
the Clinic.   
 
WHEREAS, in consideration of the mutual understanding and agreement set forth, the 
County and Clinic agree as follows: 

1. Description of Services: 
Effective November 16, 2021, the County will co-locate its Public Health Disease 
Prevention and Control (DPC) Nurse on-site at the Clinic, 906 College Ave, Red Wing, 
MN 55066, for an average of twenty (20) hours per week. This arrangement will be more 
conducive to a collaboration between the two agencies, will assist in expanded access to 
health care for underserved residents, will aim to increase connecting Goodhue County 
or Clinic customers to services at both agencies, and utilize the mutual expertise of both 
agencies to provide health education at individual and community levels to prevent 
disease, improve health and ultimately reduce health care costs for the community. 
 

2. In-Kind Support 
a) The County shall not be responsible for any program costs of the Clinic’s, but will 

provide the following in-kind office infrastructure related to DPC Nursing Services; 
1) Computer, monitor, mouse, keyboard, and connection cords for one staff.  

 
b) Similarly, Clinic will not be responsible for any of the costs of the DPC Nurse but will 

provide the following in-kind infrastructure: 
1) Office space for the DPC Nurse; including desk, chair, filing cabinet/drawer with 

lock. 
2) Internet usage 
3) Building access/key for DPC nurse  
4) Telephone Service 
5) Use of Conference Rooms as needed for nursing duties 

 
3. County Responsibilities 

a. Employ nurse with expertise in Disease Prevention and Control as a Goodhue County 
employee. 

b. Provide training on local public health expectations, Disease Prevention and Control, 
equity issues, leadership. 

c. Explore opportunities for continuing education and tuition reimbursement.  



   P a g e  | 2  

d. Assume shared responsibility with the Clinic for recruitment, interviewing, and 
selection of the position. 

e. Assume responsibility for supervision of DPC nurse by Family Health Nurse 
Supervisor while the DPC nurse is engaged in Goodhue County Health and Human 
Services DPC duties as defined in the GCHHS job description. (Attachment A).  

f. Collaborate on disease prevention and health education efforts with Clinic including 
provision of Minnesota Vaccines for Children (MNVFC) and Uninsured and 
Underinsured Adult Vaccine (UUAV) Program.  

4. CARE Clinic Responsibilities 
a. Assume shared responsibility for recruitment, interviewing, and selection of the 

position.  
b. Assume responsibility for supervision and clinical training of DPC Nurse by Executive 

Director of Clinic while the DPC Nurse is working in the Clinic and performing Clinic 
duties as defined in the Clinic job description (Attachment B). 

c. Collaborate on disease prevention and health education efforts with Goodhue County 
Health and Human Services including provision of Minnesota Vaccines for Children 
and Uninsured and Underinsured Adult Vaccine Programs.  

d. All medical records related to patient care, other than records in the MNVFC and 
UUAV programs, shall remain records of the Clinic and be held by the Clinic and 
shall be subject to any applicable laws, rules or regulations related to data collection, 
storage, use and dissemination.    

 

5. No Employment Relationship 
It is agreed by the parties that at all times and for all purposes herein, the DPC Nurse shall 
be considered an employee of County. The Clinic, its employees, hires, assigns, and 
volunteers shall not be considered employees of County for any reason.   
 

6. Indemnification:  
Each party to this Agreement shall be liable for its own acts and the results thereof to the 
extent authorized by law and shall not be responsible for the acts or the other party, its 
officers, employees or agents, except that the Clinic does hereby agree that it will defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless, the County, its officers and employees, against any and 
all liability, loss, damages, costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, which the 
County, its officers and employees, may hereafter sustain, incur, or be required to pay, 
arising out of or by reason of any act or omission of the DPC Nurse while performing 
clinic duties under the direction and control of the Clinic pursuant to this agreement. 
 

 

7. Data Practices 
All data collected, created, received, maintained, or disseminated for any purposes by 
the activities of the Clinic because of this contract is governed by the Minnesota 
Government Data Practices Act, Minnesota Chapter 13, as amended, the Minnesota 
Rules implementing such act now in force or as adopted, as well as any applicable 
federal regulations on data privacy.   



   P a g e  | 3  

 
Clinic and County agree to comply with the requirements of the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and its implementing regulations (45 C.F.R. 
Part 160-164), (collectively referred to as “HIPAA”). 
 

8. Default and Cancellation 
This agreement may be terminated at any time by either party with or without cause 
upon thirty (30) days written notice.   
If this agreement is terminated, the indemnification provisions contained in paragraph 
6 shall remain in effect for all services performed prior to date of termination.” 

9. Standards 
The DPC Nurse shall comply with the Care Clinic Code of Conduct regarding safety 
and security when conducting activities on Clinic premises.  The County Public Health 
Nurse shall also comply with all Federal and State statutes and regulations as well as 
local ordinances and rules now in effect or hereafter adopted. 

10. Amendments 
This Agreement may be supplemented, amended or revised only in writing by 
agreement of both parties. 

 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Goodhue County and the Clinic have executed this Agreement as 
of the day and year first written above. 
 
C. A. R. E. CLINIC  

 
BY:   DATED:   

 
Julie Malyon 
President 
 

BY:   DATED:   
 
Mike Grove 
Board Chair 

 
GOODHUE COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
 
BY: _________________________________   DATED: _____________________________ 
 

Nina Arneson  
Director 



   P a g e  | 4  

BY: _________________________________   DATED: _____________________________ 
 

Brad Anderson 
Goodhue County Health and Human Services Board Chair 

 
 
 



DP&C DUTIES for GCHHS 
REGULAR DUTIES: 

 
1. Manage UUMV and MnVFC immunization programs administered by GCHHS.   

• Organize and immunizations by appointment.    
• Order and inventory vaccine and supplies.  
• Enter vaccines into MIIC with support staff assistance. 

 

2. Provide consultation with community and providers regarding DPC issues, and serve as 
back up to consult with the schools about communicable diseases.  
 

3. Provide presentations and participate in community wellness activities per request. 
 

4. Work with MDH and providers for reporting diseases and outbreaks. 
 

5. Assist refugees and immigrants with medical evaluations. 
 

6. Provide tuberculosis (TB) control activities to include: Mantoux testing , set up Class B  
evaluations at Olmsted County TB clinic, investigation and treatment of active TB cases 
and contacts, and provide back-up for LTBI medication monitoring and case 
management.   

 
7. Assess data regarding communicable diseases and develop strategies to prevent and 

control them. 
 

8. Assist emergency preparedness staff with disease outbreak and public health 
emergencies planning. 

 
9. Submit quarterly trend and annual reports. Review budget reports.  

 
10. Participate in GCHHS Public Health Accreditation responsibilities.  

 
11. Review and update infection control policies and protocols per HHS manual.   

 
 
 REPRESENT GCHHS AT REGIONAL MEETINGS FOR COLLABORATION AND LEARNING:  
  

LENM- The Local Epidemiology Network of MN_ is a network of epidemiologists and 
DP&C staff from metro and surrounding counties. Meets every 3rd Weds. 9:30-Noon, 
alternating WebEx and in-person meetings at St. Paul/Ramsey Co. Public Health.  

SEMIIC -The Southeast Minnesota Immunization Connection is a regional board 
coordinating 11 SE MN counties and providers that participate in the MIIC immunization 
registry. Meets quarterly the 4th Tues. of Jan., April, July, Oct., Noon-2pm at Olmsted Co. 



Public Health in Rochester.  

IDEPC (Infectious Disease Epidemiology Prevention & Control) Monthly Immunization Calls- 
4th Thurs., 9- l0am.   

DP&C Team Meetings- monthly.  
 

SE DP&C Meetings- usually every other month. Scheduled by MDH. WebEx. Similar 
to LENM meeting only with SE counties. 

 
 HHS ICS Meeting- Every other Tuesday at 9 am. Virtual

 



Revised 11/4/2021 
Approved by the Admin Committee on 1/29/2015 

Nurse Manager 
C.A.R.E. CLINIC, RED WING 

 
I. TITLE 

Nurse Manager 
 

II. OVERALL RESPONSIBILITY 
Provides clinical and office support to the overall operations of C.A.R.E. Clinic. 
Senior leader responsible for clinical services, care coordination, patient education/communication, 
volunteer management, and medical equipment/supplies. 

 

III. ACCOUNTABILITY 
Accountable to and receives direction from the Executive Director, Mental Health Director and Medical 
Director(s).  

 

IV. RESPONSIBILITIES 
a. Provides direct support to staff, volunteers, committees, and board of directors 

i. Organizes and delegates office functions to the Clinical Assistant 
ii. Oversees the recruitment, retention and satisfaction all volunteers: 

Manages volunteers including activities such as orientation, schedule changes, 
communicating with lead volunteers, precepting work study students, etc. 

iii. Establishes administrative work processes and standard approaches to tasks that allow 
for ease when a volunteer performs the task (i.e.: processing bills, ordering, volunteer 
recognition, patient concerns, etc.). 

iv. Works as a team member and partner to the Dental Office Manager, Finance Manager, 
and MNsure Manager 

b. Communication with partners and the community at large 
i. Maintains high level of acceptance with medical community, community at large, and 

C.A.R.E. Board to promote future success of clinic. 
c. Clinic Management:  Leads or delegates responsibility for all aspect of the clinic’s medical and 

mental health programs 
i. Acts as supply management and purchasing agent for medical supplies and chart forms 
ii. Maintain cleanliness of the clinic; prepares space for clinic days 

iii. Imports and exports patient data into a database for analysis 
iv. Monitors medical supplies for outdates 
v. Weekly chart and lab/radiology review; patient letters 

vi. Manage specialty clinic schedule; patient appointment reminders-may delegate 
reminder calls to Clinical Assistant 

vii. Provide follow up and case management for medical and mental health patients 
viii. Works closely with Medical and Mental Health Directors to define scope and delivery of 

clinical and mental health care. 
ix. Provides leadership in developing and maintaining standards of care. 
x. Ensures that the C.A.R.E. Clinic meets all regulatory requirements (HIPAA, OSHA, BBF, 

etc.). 



Revised 11/4/2021 
Approved by the Admin Committee on 1/29/2015 

xi. Develops and maintains infection control procedures. 
xii. Develops and maintains laboratory procedures.  

xiii. Identifies clinical supply needs and organize exam rooms, supplies, medical equipment, 
and medical technology. 

xiv. Ensures delivery of quality services and programs. 
xv. Assures appropriate patient education. 

xvi. Assures clinical cost per patient is as efficient as possible. 
xvii. Delegates appropriately to competent volunteers. 

xviii. Accountable for the design of patient flow. 
a. Assure continuity of care between patients and the larger medical community: 

i. Develops protocols for and assures appropriate follow-up of patients with acute and chronic 
health problems. 

ii. Assures continuity of patient care. 
iii. Maintains partnerships with local pharmacies. 

b. Management of documentation: 
i. Oversees all clinical documentation requirements and processes. 

ii. Develop, maintain, and update database for collection of necessary data. 
iii. Develop and maintain clinical policies and procedures. 
iv. Identifies C.A.R.E. Clinic’s needs and develop patient education materials (in English and 

Spanish). 
v. Assures timely and accurate completion of medical transcription. 

vi. Updates the pharmacy formulary. 
d. Fundraising Support 

i. May be asked to help with annual fundraising campaign 
e. Event Coordination 

i. May be asked to help plan and oversee events for C.A.R.E. Clinic 
f. Other duties as assigned  
 

V. EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE 
a. Associates degree in Nursing 
b. CPR certification 
c. Excellent written and oral communication skills 
d. Experience with Microsoft Office, Excel, Publisher, etc. 
e. Past medical and mental health clinic experience 
f. Self-starter 
 

VI. SALARY  / HOURS  
a. Approximately 20 hours per week 



 
Goodhue County Health and Human Services Board 

11-16-2021 COVID-19 Update 
 

 

     https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/COVID-19-Information-and-Resources  
 

 
 

Goodhue County COVID-19 Information and Resources:  
• Goodhue County COVID-19 Webpage 
• Goodhue County Health & Human Services Facebook Page 
• Goodhue County COVID-19 Hotline: (651) 385-2000 
• Financial Support/Social Services: (651) 385-3200 
• WIC Program: (651) 385-6120  

 
 

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/COVID-19-Information-and-Resources
https://goodhue.us18.list-manage.com/track/click?u=a206b34f403cfbccedac5b86e&id=f9690dcc80&e=8c268ccbc4
https://goodhue.us18.list-manage.com/track/click?u=a206b34f403cfbccedac5b86e&id=691732fc83&e=8c268ccbc4
https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/1356/COVID-19-Information-and-Resources


Promote, Strengthen and Protect the Health  
of Individuals, Families and Communities! 
Equal Opportunity Employer 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS 

Goodhue County 
Health and Human Services 

 
 

426 West Avenue 
Red Wing, MN  55066 

(651) 385-3200 ● Fax (651) 267-4882 

 
 
 
 
DATE: November 16, 2021 
 
TO:  Goodhue County Health and Human Services (HHS) Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Matter, Accounting Supervisor  
 
RE:  Third Quarter 2021 Fiscal Report 
 
 
In the third quarter of CY 2021, Goodhue County Health & Human Services 
Agency had the following budget financial summary.   
 

• We expended 73% ($13,263,912) of our budget ($18,294,386) 75% of 
the way through the year.  Last year at this time, we expended 72%.  

• We have collected 75% ($13,653,310) of our anticipated revenue 
($18,294,386), 75% of the way through the year.  Last year at this time, 
we collected 74%.  
 

Children in Out of Home Placement: 
We have expended 84.4% ($1,511,790) of our budget ($1,792,000), 75% of 
the way through the year, which resulted in being over budget 9.36% or 
$167,790.   
 
County Burials:  
We have expended 68% ($19,077) of our budget ($28,000), 75% of the way 
through the year.  
  
 
 
 
 

https://www.health.state.mn.us/communities/practice/ta/accreditation.html
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS


Promote, Strengthen and Protect the Health  
of Individuals, Families and Communities! 
Equal Opportunity Employer 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS 
 

 
State Hospital Costs:  
We have expended 60% ($148,268) of our budget ($250,000) 75% of the 
way through the year.  Last year at this time, we expended $142,457.  We 
continue to anticipate this given the state crisis with mental health, the 
situation with Anoka-Metro Regional Treatment Center where clients do not 
have any other place to go. 
 
Salaries, Benefits, Overhead and Capital Equipment: 
On agency salaries, benefits, overhead and capital equipment line items, we 
have expended 73% of our budget 75% of the way through the year.   
 
Staffing Revenues Additional Staff: 
For the third quarter report, total staffing revenue is 95% ($4,224,164) 75% 
through the year of the total 2021 budget of $4,437,027 for these revenue 
categories. 
 
COVID-19 Pandemic: 
HHS will continue to have some additional personnel expenses associated 
with the pandemic as staff are still doing COVID-19 response and clinics so 
additional costs are anticipated.  HHS did receive a Federal COVID-19 
Vaccine Implementation and Distribution Grant up to $378,625. This grant is 
being amended to increase the amount we can submit reimbursement for, 
and with an end date of 12/31/2023.  HHS also received some smaller 
Federal and State COVID-19 implementation grants of $23,744 and $68,405 
which we have earned and received. 
 
During November 2021 – January 2022 HHS will be participating in COVID-
19 vaccine booster clinics.  
 
We also don’t know when some of the State/Federal waivers for some of the 
programs that we provide services will be lifted or if some will still be in place 
to counties for the foreseen future? 
 
 
 
 

https://www.health.state.mn.us/communities/practice/ta/accreditation.html
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS




Goodhue County HHS Out of Home Placment

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET % OF % OF

ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2020 THRU 9/21 2021 BUDGET YEAR

11-430-710-3410-6020 ELECTRIC HOME MONITORING $4,528.00 $489.00 $7,000.00 7% 75%

11-430-710-3710-6020 CHILD SHELTER -SS $8,457.66 $18,000.00 0% 75%

11-430-710-3711-6020 REGULAR CRISIS CARE - CS 75%

11-430-710-3750-6025 NORTHSTAR KINSHIP ASSISTANCE $7,500.00 0% 75%

11-430-710-3780-6025 NORTHSTAR ADOPTION ASSISTANCE $6,000.00 0% 75%

11-430-710-3800-6057 RULE 4 TRMT FOSTER CARE - SS $81,876.93 $69,062.81 $70,000.00 99% 75%

11-430-710-3810-6057 REGULAR FOSTER CARE - SS $472,011.10 $383,268.28 $500,000.00 77% 75%

11-430-710-3810-6058 REGULAR FOSTER CARE - SS-CS- EXPENSES $33,251.23 $29,283.17 $37,000.00 79% 75%

11-430-710-3814-6056 EMERGENCY FOSTER CARE PROVIDER $8,052.00 $6,028.00 $8,000.00 75% 75%

11-430-710-3814-6057 EMERGENCY FOSTER CARE $2,211.10 $10,319.99 $5,000.00 206% 75%

11-430-710-3820-6020 RELATIVE CUSTODY ASSISTANCE 75%

11-430-710-3830-6020 PAYMENTS FOR RECIPIENTS - RULE 8 SS $155,054.43 $95,344.22 $140,000.00 68% 75%

11-430-710-3831-6020 PAYMENTS FOR RECIPIENTS - RULE 8 CS $28,978.14 $3,491.10 $70,000.00 5% 75%

11-430-710-3850-6020 DEPT OF CORR GROUP FACILITY - SS $226,312.81 $167,857.96 $275,000.00 61% 75%

11-430-710-3852-6020 DEPT OF CORR GROUP FACILITY - CS $205,546.97 $141,759.54 $200,000.00 71% 75%

11-430-710-3880-6020 EXTENDED FOSTER CARE - IND LIVING 18-20 $112,396.83 $113,228.65 $100,000.00 113% 75%

11-430-710-3890-6020 SHORT TERM FOSTER CARE/RESPITE CARE $2,761.72 $1,763.71 $2,500.00 71% 75%

11-430-740-3830-6020 PAYMENT FOR RECIPIENTS - RULE 5 SS $653,046.69 $467,657.15 $340,000.00 138% 75%

11-430-740-3831-6020 RULE 5 CS $3,720.91 $22,236.70 $6,000.00 371% 75%

TOTAL OUT OF HOME PLACEMENT $1,998,206.52 $1,511,790.28 $1,792,000.00 84.4% 75%

Over/(Under) Budget for percent of year $1,795,000.00 $167,790.28 $1,344,000.00 75% 75%
Percent Over/(Under) Budget -$203,206.52 9.36%

December
November
October
September 9.36%
August 7.33%
July 6.03%
June 4.25%
May 3.30%
April 3.67%
March 3.48%
February 1.02%
January 0.84%

Over/Under Budget 2020 11.51%



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 





165.81%

98.53%

68.36%

113.89%

82.88%

95.20%

$0 $500,000 $1,000,000 $1,500,000 $2,000,000 $2,500,000 $3,000,000 $3,500,000 $4,000,000

Child Protection & IV-E

Child Support

SSTS-LTSS Time Study

Targeted Case Management

Waiver Case Management

Total Staffing Revenue

HHS Staffing Revenue Q3/2021
75% of Year

% of Budget Year to Date Budget



Promote, Strengthen and Protect the Health  
of Individuals, Families and Communities! 
Equal Opportunity Employer 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS 

 
 
 

GOODHUE COUNTY  
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (GCHHS)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Monthly Update 
Child Protection Assessments/Investigations 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Month 2019 2020 2021 
January 21 16 20 

February 20 30 17 
March 34 19 15 
April 20 15 24 
May 23 21 26 
June 16 10 22 
July 16 12 19 
August 19 17 17 
September 25 18 17 
October 29 25 12 
November 24 21  
December 21 14  
Total 268 218 189 

https://www.health.state.mn.us/communities/practice/ta/accreditation.html
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS


Promote, Strengthen and Protect the Health  
of Individuals, Families and Communities! 
Equal Opportunity Employer 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS 

Goodhue County 
Health and Human Services 

 
 

426 West Avenue 
Red Wing, MN  55066 

(651) 385-3200 ● Fax (651) 267-4882 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Goodhue County Health and Human Services Board  
 
FROM: Nina Arneson, GCHHS Director  
 
DATE:  November 16, 2021 
 
RE:   2021 November Staffing Report  
 
 
 

Outgoing Employee Classification 
 
New Employee 

 
Hire Date 

Sara Gold Eligibility Worker Ruth Buck 10/12/21 

Melissa Ledford Social Worker Samantha LaShomb 11/8/21 

    

    

    

    
 

 
 
 

https://www.health.state.mn.us/communities/practice/ta/accreditation.html
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/HHS


Goodhue County Health & Human Services
November 16, 2021

Quarterly Trend Report
Quarter 3, 2021



Table of Contents

Economic Assistance
3 Child Support
4 Cash Assistance
5 Healthcare
6 SNAP

Public Health
7    Disease Prevention & Control
8    Family Health
9    WIC                                                           
10  Live Well Goodhue County   
11  Healthy Communities
12  Waiver Management Team

13 Wavier Services in Action  
Social Services

14  Adult Protection
15  Mental Health
16  Child Protection    
17  Child Care Licensing                                                          
18  Children’s Programs

Administrative
19  County Cars



Purpose/Role of Program

Story Behind the Baseline
• LEFT: Children need both parents contributing to their financial security and 

child support is one means of accomplishing that. 

• CENTER: Establishing parentage gives a child born outside of marriage a legal 
father and the same legal rights as a child born to married parents.  The 
paternities established during the federal fiscal year may not necessarily be for 
the same children born of non-marital births in the previous year. This is why 
percentages often exceed 100.

• RIGHT: This is a measure of counties’ work toward ensuring children receive 
financial support from both parents. Through our role in the Child Support 
program, we help ensure that parents contribute to their children’s economic 
support through securing enforceable orders, monitoring payments, providing 
enforcement activities, and modifying orders when necessary. 

Economic Assistance
Child Support 

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2019 2020 2021

% Open Child Support Cases with 
Orders Established 

% open child support cases with orders established
Target: 80%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2019 2020 2021

% Collections on Current Support

% Collections on Current Support Minimum Performance Target
High Performance Target: 80%

• LEFT: Continue to focus on reaching out to the non-
custodial parents. Phone calls, building rapport and 
working together for reasonable payments helps to 
increase the  % of  collections on current support.  

• CENTER: Staff factors influence all the measures.  
Continue to support our dedicated workers and utilize 
experienced, skilled staff in training new staff.

• RIGHT: Continue to work closely with Goodhue County 
Attorney’s Office and share information between courts, 
tribal nations, and other states that impact the ability to 
collect support across state boundaries. 

Minnesota’s Child Support Program benefits children by enforcing parental responsibility for their support.  The Minnesota Department of Human 
Services' Child Support Division supervises the Child Support Program. County child support offices administer it by working with parents to establish 
and enforce support orders. The child support staff works with employers and other payors, financial institutions, other states and more to implement 
federal and state laws for the program.  The program costs for the Child Support Program are financed by a combination of federal and state money.

The measures below are annual measures the federal office uses to evaluate states for competitive incentive funds.

3

Child Support data is provided annually by DHS.

0%

50%

100%

2019 2020 2021

% Open Child Support Cases with 
Paternity Established 

% open child support cases with paternity
established

Target: 90%.


Chart1

		2019		2019

		2020		2020

		2021		2021

				0.8



% open child support cases with orders established

Target: 80%

% Open Child Support Cases with Orders Established

0.9

0.8

0.89

0.8

0.87

0.8



Sheet1

				% open child support cases with orders established		Target: 80%

		2019		90%		80%

		2020		89%		80%

		2021		87%		80%

						80%






Chart1

		2019		2019		2019

		2020		2020		2020

		2021		2021		2021

						0.8



% Collections on Current Support

Minimum Performance Target

High Performance Target: 80%

% Collections on Current Support

0.78

0.76

0.8

0.78

0.77

0.8

0.77

0.77

0.8



Sheet1

				% Collections on Current Support		Minimum Performance Target		High Performance Target: 80%

		2019		78%		76%		80%

		2020		78%		77%		80%

		2021		77%		77%		80%

								80%

								80%

								80%

								80%

								80%

								80%

								80%






Chart1

		2019		2019

		2020		2020

		2021		2021



% open child support cases with paternity established

Target: 90%.

% Open Child Support Cases with Paternity Established

1.01

0.9

0.98

0.9

1

0.9



Sheet1

				% open child support cases with paternity established		Target: 90%.

		2019		101%		90%

		2020		98%		90%

		2021		100%		90%







Story Behind the Baseline

LEFT, CENTER & RIGHT:   These figures demonstrate steady volumes of services for 
the MFIP, DWP, GRH, General Assistance and MN Supplemental Aid Households.  
The DWP program has been reinstated as of October 1st, 2021.  Expect to see an 
increase in DWP because many unemployment programs are ending and a slight 
decrease in MFIP in the 4th quarter.    

Economic Assistance
Cash Assistance

Where Do We Go From Here?

LEFT, CENTER & RIGHT:  Many factors influence the need for these 
safety net programs including economy and availability of 
community resources such as food shelves, and natural disasters that 
result in increased applications.

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

# MFIP Households
# DWP Households

# Diversionary Work Program
# Minnesota Family Investment Program

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Jan-19 Jun-19 Nov-19 Apr-20 Sep-20 Feb-21 Jul-21 Dec-21

# Housing Support Households

#Group Residential Housing
Households

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160

Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

# General Assistance Households
# of MN Supplemental Aid 

Households

# General Assistance
Households
# of MN Supplemental Aid
Households

Purpose/Role of Program
The cash assistance programs administered at the county are entitlement programs that help eligible individuals and families meet their basic needs until they 
can support themselves.  Eligibility for these programs is determined by Eligibility Workers and is based on an applicant’s financial need.  The programs are 
administered by county agencies under the supervision of the state Department of Human Services.   The program costs for the cash programs are financed 
by federal and/or state money (depending on the specific program). The MFIP and DWP program are time-limited and include work requirements and access 
to employment services.  Income Maintenance staff work closely with local job counselors. 

4


Chart1

		43482		43482

		43513		43513

		43541		43541

		43574		43574

		43604		43604

		43635		43635

		43665		43665

		43696		43696

		43727		43727

		43757		43757

		43788		43788

		43818		43818

		43831		43831

		43881		43881

		43910		43910

		43941		43941

		43971		43971

		44002		44002

		44032		44032

		44063		44063

		44094		44094

		44489		44489

		44520		44520

		44550		44550

		44217		44217

		44248		44248

		44276		44276

		44307		44307

		44337		44337

		44368		44368

		44398		44398

		44429		44429

		44460		44460



# Diversionary Work Program

# Minnesota Family Investment Program

# MFIP Households
# DWP Households

9

118

8

117

9

120

15

135

23

132

23

129

17

116

12

122

10

115

9

112

10

111

10

103

9

106

8

111

8

117

6

149

1

145

0

167

0

168

0

156

0

166

0

158

0

158

0

158

0

179

0

180

0

191

0

178

0

165

0

166

0

161

0

151

2

150



Sheet1

				# Diversionary Work Program		# Minnesota Family Investment Program

		Jan-19		9		118

		Feb-19		8		117

		Mar-19		9		120

		Apr-19		15		135

		May-19		23		132

		Jun-19		23		129

		Jul-19		17		116

		Aug-19		12		122

		Sep-19		10		115

		Oct-19		9		112

		Nov-19		10		111

		Dec-19		10		103

		Jan-20		9		106

		Feb-20		8		111

		Mar-20		8		117

		Apr-20		6		149

		May-20		1		145

		Jun-20		0		167

		Jul-20		0		168

		Aug-20		0		156

		Sep-20		0		166

		Oct-21		0		158

		Nov-21		0		158

		Dec-21		0		158

		Jan-21		0		179

		Feb-21		0		180

		Mar-21		0		191

		Apr-21		0		178

		May-21		0		165

		Jun-21		0		166

		21-Jul		0		161

		21-Aug		0		151

		21-Sep		2		150






Chart1

		43466

		43497

		43525

		43574

		43604

		43635

		43665

		43696

		43727

		43739

		43770

		43800

		43831

		43881

		43910

		43941

		43971

		44002

		44032

		44063

		44094

		44489

		44520

		44550

		44217

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368

		44398

		44429

		44460



#Group Residential Housing Households

# Housing Support Households

137

136

135

134

145

147

144

150

150

148

140

146

146

151

152

149

149

149

142

144

141

144

142

146

145

147

149

150

149

146

146

144

141



Sheet1

				#Group Residential Housing Households

		Jan-19		137

		Feb-19		136

		Mar-19		135

		Apr-19		134

		May-19		145

		Jun-19		147

		Jul-19		144

		Aug-19		150

		Sep-19		150

		Oct-19		148

		Nov-19		140

		Dec-19		146

		Jan-20		146

		Feb-20		151

		Mar-20		152

		Apr-20		149

		May-20		149

		Jun-20		149

		Jul-20		142

		Aug-20		144

		20-Sep		141

		Oct-21		144

		Nov-21		142

		Dec-21		146

		Jan-21		145

		Feb-21		147

		Mar-21		149

		Apr-21		150

		May-21		149

		Jun-21		146

		Jul-21		146

		Aug-21		144

		21-Sep		141






Chart1

		43466		43466

		43497		43497

		43525		43525

		43574		43574

		43604		43604

		43635		43635

		43665		43665

		43696		43696

		43727		43727

		43739		43739

		43770		43770

		43800		43800

		43831		43831

		43881		43881

		43910		43910

		43941		43941

		43971		43971

		44002		44002

		44032		44032

		44063		44063

		44094		44094

		44489		44489

		44520		44520

		44550		44550

		44217		44217

		44248		44248

		44276		44276

		44307		44307

		44337		44337

		44368		44368

		44398		44398

		44429		44429

		44460		44460



# General Assistance Households

# of MN Supplemental Aid Households

# General Assistance Households
# of MN Supplemental Aid Households

78

120

78

130

73

132

82

134

87

134

86

134

87

135

91

139

86

140

87

142

94

142

97

141

93

140

92

139

89

133

94

142

99

139

92

141

90

144

101

141

102

144

111

145

110

141

114

144

106

148

111

145

110

141

112

139

104

137

98

135

107

141

113

141

104

143



Sheet1

				# General Assistance Households		# of MN Supplemental Aid Households

		Jan-19		78		120

		Feb-19		78		130

		Mar-19		73		132

		Apr-19		82		134

		May-19		87		134

		Jun-19		86		134

		Jul-19		87		135

		Aug-19		91		139

		Sep-19		86		140

		Oct-19		87		142

		Nov-19		94		142

		Dec-19		97		141

		Jan-20		93		140

		Feb-20		92		139

		Mar-20		89		133

		Apr-20		94		142

		May-20		99		139

		Jun-20		92		141

		Jul-20		90		144

		Aug-20		101		141

		Sep-20		102		144

		Oct-21		111		145

		Nov-21		110		141

		Dec-21		114		144

		Jan-21		106		148

		Feb-21		111		145

		Mar-21		110		141

		Apr-21		112		139

		May-21		104		137

		Jun-21		98		135

		Jul-21		107		141

		Aug-21		113		141

		21-Sep		104		143







Story Behind the Baseline

Economic Assistance
Healthcare

Where Do We Go From Here?

LEFT: Continue to make accessing services easy for all 
county residents needing assistance with healthcare. 

CENTER & RIGHT:  We continue to work closely with 
MNsure and DHS in order to  improve the applicant and 
worker experience with the MNsure system.  This 
continues to be very challenging due to METS’ technical  
and system issues, program complexities, changing 
policies, and inadequate supports from the state.   

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

Purpose/Role of Program
Minnesota has several health care programs that provide free or low-cost health care coverage. These programs may pay for all or part of the recipient’s 
medical bills.  The healthcare programs administered by the county agencies are done so under the supervision of the state Department of Human Services.  
Eligibility for the healthcare programs is determined via a combination of system determination (MNsure/METS/MAXIS) and Eligibility Workers.  Eligibility is 
based on varying factors including income and assets.   Funding for the healthcare programs is a combination of federal and state money. 

0

5,000

10,000

Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

# Enrolled Persons in Healthcare Programs 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

Jan-19 May-19 Sep-19 Jan-20 May-20 Sep-20 Jan-21 May-21 Sep-21

# Enrolled Persons on MNsure/METS

0%

50%

100%

Jan-19 Jul-19 Jan-20 Jul-20 Jan-21 Jul-21

% of Enrollees in MNsure/METS

% of Enrollees in Mnsure/METS

• LEFT: The number of enrollees on healthcare for Medical Assistance (MA) and 
MinnesotaCare (MCRE) has increased during COVID-19 Peacetime Emergency; provisions 
of Emergency Order helped ensure enrollees did not lose healthcare coverage.

• CENTER & RIGHT: The number of healthcare recipients enrolled through the 
MNsure/METS system has increased over the years as more people enroll and those on 
the legacy system (MAXIS) transfer to MNsure/METS.  With transfer complete, we are no 
longer seeing transfer related increases. The number of enrollees on healthcare for MA 
and MCRE has increased during COVID-19 Peacetime Emergency with the provisions of 
Emergency Order helping ensure enrollees did not lose healthcare coverage. 

5


Chart1

		43484

		43515

		43543

		43574

		43604

		43635

		43665

		43696

		43727

		43757

		43788

		43818

		43850

		43881

		43910

		43941

		43971

		44002

		44032

		44063

		44094

		44124

		44155

		44185

		44217

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368

		44398

		44429

		44460



# Enrolled Persons in Healthcare Programs (MA & MCRE)

# Enrolled Persons in Healthcare Programs

6200

6242

6201

6220

6255

6270

6334

6443

6412

6446

6445

6398

6354

6424

6415

6693

6863

7009

7100

7168

7290

7383

7466

7551

7635

7750

7800

7933

8003

8092

8178

8198

8244



Sheet1

				# Enrolled Persons in Healthcare Programs (MA & MCRE)

		Jan-19		6,200

		Feb-19		6,242

		Mar-19		6,201

		Apr-19		6,220

		May-19		6,255

		Jun-19		6,270

		Jul-19		6,334

		Aug-19		6,443

		Sep-19		6,412

		Oct-19		6,446

		Nov-19		6,445

		Dec-19		6,398

		Jan-20		6354

		Feb-20		6424

		Mar-20		6415

		Apr-20		6693

		May-20		6863

		Jun-20		7009

		Jul-20		7100

		20-Aug		7168

		20-Sep		7290

		Oct-20		7383

		Nov-20		7466

		Dec-20		7551

		Jan-21		7635

		Feb-21		7750

		Mar-21		7800

		Apr-21		7933

		May-21		8003

		Jun-21		8092

		21-Jul		8178

		21-Aug		8198

		21-Sep		8244






Chart1

		43484

		4657

		4618

		4626

		4658

		4657

		4732

		4849

		4824

		4856

		4857

		43817

		43850

		4846

		43910

		5094

		5271

		44002

		5469

		5537

		44094

		5737

		5802

		5802

		44217

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368

		44398

		44429

		44460



# Enrolled Persons on Mnsure/METS

# Enrolled Persons on MNsure/METS

4596

4813

4763

4842

5398

5649

5983

6096

6119

6243

6291

6377

6445

6467

6494



Sheet1

				# Enrolled Persons on Mnsure/METS

		Jan-19		4,596

				4,657

				4,618

				4,626

				4,658

				4,657

				4,732

				4,849

				4,824

				4,856

				4,857

		Dec-19		4,813

		Jan-20		4763

				4846

		Mar-20		4842

				5094

				5271

		Jun-20		5,398

				5469

				5537

		Sep-20		5649

				5737

				5802

				5802

		Jan-21		5983

		Feb-21		6096

		Mar-21		6119

		Apr-21		6243

		May-21		6291

		Jun-21		6377

		Jul-21		6445

		Aug-21		6467

		Sep-21		6494





Sheet2

		






Chart1

		43484

		0.75

		0.75

		0.75

		43604

		0.74

		0.75

		43696

		0.75

		0.75

		43788

		0.75

		43850

		43881

		43910

		43941

		43971

		44002

		44032

		44063

		44094

		44489

		44520

		44550

		44217

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368

		44398

		44429

		44460



% of Enrollees in Mnsure/METS

% of Enrollees in MNsure/METS

0.74

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.75

0.76

0.76

0.77

0.77

0.77

0.77

0.78

0.78

0.78

0.78

0.78

0.79

0.78

0.79

0.79

0.79

0.79

0.79

0.79



Sheet1

				% of Enrollees in Mnsure/METS

		Jan-19		74%

				75%

				75%

				75%

		May-19		75%

				74%

				75%

		Aug-19		75%

				75%

				75%

		Nov-19		75%

				75%

		Jan-20		75%

		Feb-20		75%

		Mar-20		76%

		Apr-20		76%

		May-20		77%

		Jun-20		77%

		Jul-20		77%

		Aug-20		77%

		Sep-20		78%

		Oct-21		78%

		Nov-21		78%

		Dec-21		78%

		Jan-21		78%

		Feb-21		79%

		Mar-21		78%

		Apr-21		79%

		May-21		79%

		Jun-21		79%

		Jul-21		79%

		Aug-21		79%

		21-Sep		79%







Story Behind the Baseline

Economic Assistance
SNAP

Purpose/Role of Program
SNAP is a federal entitlement program that increases the food purchasing power of low-income households.  Eligibility for this program is determined by 
Eligibility Workers and is based on an applicant’s financial need.  The benefit level is determined by household income, household size, housing costs and 
more.  SNAP applicants are given expedited service when they have little to no other resources available to pay for food and, therefore, need basic safety net 
programs to meet a crisis. This program is administered by county agencies under the supervision of the state Department of Human Services.  The program 
costs for the SNAP program are financed by a combination of federal and state money.  The program includes work requirements for some recipients. 

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0

500

1000

1500

Jan-19 Jul-19 Jan-20 Jul-20 Jan-21 Jul-21

# of Food Support Households

# of Food Support Households

• LEFT: The number of households receiving food benefits in Goodhue County was stable around 1100 
from 2017 to 2019 and has increased slightly during the pandemic, to around 1300 households in June 
2021. This follows the state trend.  

• CENTER: Since this measure was created in 2014, GCHHS has been above the 55% state performance 
threshold, including in 2020 when our annual performance was 65%.  We met the threshold every 
month, with the exception of July 2020 and April 2021.  GCHHS has some of the most timely 
processing in the region and was above the 2020 state average performance of 49%. 

• RIGHT: Goodhue County well exceeds the 75% state performance threshold for processing SNAP and 
Cash applications, and has since this measure was created in 2014.  GCHHS has met our internal goal 
of 95% annual performance in 2015, 2018, and 2020. During the pandemic, the ability to accept 
electronic signatures over the phone made it easier to meet the processing timeline.

• LEFT: Continue to make accessing services  easy for all county 
residents who need help with food support. 

• CENTER: Continue to identify expedited applications and 
process applications timely. 

• RIGHT: Continue to support our dedicated workers and utilize 
experienced, skilled staff in training new staff as staff retire. 

6


Chart1

		43484

		43515

		43543

		43574

		43604

		43635

		43665

		43696

		43727

		43757

		43788

		43818

		43850

		1066

		1070

		1165

		1186

		43983

		1149

		1177

		1219

		44489

		44520

		44550

		44217

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368

		44398

		44429

		44460



# of Food Support Households

# of Food Support Households

1080

1072

1081

1098

1100

1097

1093

1128

1115

1128

1118

1096

1085

1191

1234

1243

1271

1296

1287

1325

1332

1332

1323

1311

1328

1318



Sheet1

				# of Food Support Households

		Jan-19		1080

		Feb-19		1072

		Mar-19		1081

		Apr-19		1098

		May-19		1100

		Jun-19		1097

		Jul-19		1093

		Aug-19		1128

		Sep-19		1115

		Oct-19		1128

		Nov-19		1118

		Dec-19		1096

		Jan-20		1085

				1066

				1070

				1165

				1186

		Jun-20		1191

				1149

				1177

				1219

		Oct-21		1234

		Nov-21		1243

		Dec-21		1271

		Jan-21		1296

		Feb-21		1287

		Mar-21		1325

		Apr-21		1332

		May-21		1332

		Jun-21		1323

		21-Jul		1311

		21-Aug		1328

		21-Sep		1318







Story Behind the Baseline

Public Health
Disease Prevention and Control (DP&C)

Purpose/Role of Program

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

# flu vaccines given by
Homeland Health

# of flu vaccines given
by MN Visting Nurse

Agency

# all vaccines given by
HHS

# Immunizations Given

2019 2020 2021

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

# tuberculosis
cases

investigated by
HHS

# latent
tuberculosis

infection cases
seen by HHS

# TB Contact
Investigations

# New
Immigrants

and Refugees
Evaluated

# TB and Latent TB cases

2019 2020 2021 YTD

Disease Prevention and Control activities include evaluating, promoting, and providing immunizations. HHS investigates and monitors treatment of 
active and latent tuberculosis cases. Minnesota Department of Health monitors and investigates all other reportable infectious diseases and disease 
outbreaks.  DP&C  notifies medical providers  and the public when outbreaks occur and provides education about preventing communicable diseases.

• LEFT: 11,085 COVID-19 vaccines were given by HHS, we have 150 non-COVID-19 vaccines 
YTD. Our vaccination clinics are now being held by appointment only. We do plan to keep this 
by appointment only now that our building is open to the public. Flu clinics for schools and 
the Community clinics are set up and will be held this fall throughout the county. COVID 
Booster Clinics will be set up starting in Mid-November. More information to come on times 
and locations. 

• RIGHT: Follow up is being completed per our protocols. No new referrals have come in this 
year. 

LEFT: SE Mn Immunization Registry is in the middle of sending out a reminder recall to the 16-18 
months olds in SE MN. HHS continues to send immunization reminders to all one year olds in 
Goodhue Co., as well as through Child/Teen Check-up mailings. We are starting to see school-age 
children who were not able to come in during the summer. 

CENTER:MDH sent letters to all 16 years olds not up to date on the meningitis series which will be 
required for high school students in Fall 2020. HHS continues to send birthday postcard 
immunization reminders to all one year olds. More effort is being made to schedule the next 
immunization appointment and give reminder cards when next shots are due. DP&C nurses have 
provided immunizations to 10 students at 2 schools to students whose families are unable to get 
to clinics. Many counties assist schools in the Fall to provide back to school immunization clinics at 
schools for those students. This is something HHS may consider doing. 

RIGHT: HHS met with our medical director at Mayo Clinic and revised the protocol for TB 
referrals for medication and monitoring of latent TB cases. DP&C will continue to obtain 
medications from MDH for anyone with latent TB who is at high risk of progression to active 
tuberculosis and will monitor active TB cases. Mayo clinic will monitor their patients who have 
insurance to cover the drugs unless they are likely to be non-compliant in which case they’ll be 
referred them to HHS. 

7


Chart1

		# flu vaccines given by Homeland Health		# flu vaccines given by Homeland Health

		# of flu vaccines given by MN Visting Nurse Agency		# of flu vaccines given by MN Visting Nurse Agency

		# all vaccines given by HHS		# all vaccines given by HHS		10985



2019

2020

2021

# Immunizations Given

1700

1280

531

193



Sheet1

				# flu vaccines given by Homeland Health		# of flu vaccines given by MN Visting Nurse Agency		# all vaccines given by HHS

		2019		1700				531

		2020		1,280				193

		2021						10,985





Sheet2

		





Sheet3

		





Sheet4

		





Sheet5

		






Chart1

		# tuberculosis cases investigated by HHS		# tuberculosis cases investigated by HHS		# tuberculosis cases investigated by HHS

		# latent tuberculosis infection cases seen by HHS		# latent tuberculosis infection cases seen by HHS		# latent tuberculosis infection cases seen by HHS

		# TB Contact Investigations		# TB Contact Investigations		# TB Contact Investigations

		# New Immigrants and Refugees Evaluated		# New Immigrants and Refugees Evaluated		# New Immigrants and Refugees Evaluated



2019

2020

2021 YTD

# TB and Latent TB cases

0

0

11

7

7

2

0

0

2

0

0



Sheet1

				# tuberculosis cases investigated by HHS		# latent tuberculosis infection cases seen by HHS		# TB Contact Investigations		# New Immigrants and Refugees Evaluated

		2019				11		2		2

		2020		0		7		0		0

		2021 YTD		0		7		0		0







Story Behind the Baseline

Public Health
Family Home Visiting and Follow Along

Purpose/Role of Program
Family home visiting is a health promotion program that provides comprehensive and coordinated nursing services that improve pregnancy outcomes, teach child growth and 
development, and offer family planning information, as well as information to promote a decrease in child abuse and domestic violence.  Prenatal, postpartum, and child 
health visits provide support and parenting information to families. 

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2019 2020 2021 YTD

% of Pregnant Clients Who Were Either
Non-Smokers or Decreased Smoking 

During Pregnancy

% of Non-smokers or…

• LEFT:  Quarterly average is approximately 120 visits per month. Home Visits are being offered in the home or virtually. In 
person, home visits are rolling out slowly with precautions in place for our families; staff and families are excited to be meeting 
in person again. The number of families we see, and subsequently how many visits we make, depends on the birth rate. If the 
birth rate is down, we don’t receive as many referrals, thus a decrease in how many visits we can make. Our monthly visit rate 
also depends on the number of visits a family wishes to receive. Some families may want weekly visits; others may only want 
to be seen once per month. The number of  visits we make per month is very fluid and depends on many contributing factors. 

• CENTER: The percent of pregnant clients who were either non-smokers or decreased smoking during pregnancy is an annual 
number that we track. Thus far in 2021, we are below our target rate of 90%. We know that smoking during pregnancy can 
cause baby to be born early or to have low birth weight-making it more likely the baby will be sick and have to stay in the 
hospital longer. We also know that smoking during and after pregnancy is a risk factor of sudden infant death syndrome (SIDS). 
We continue to educate all of our families at home visits, as well as provide written information to the families we see as well
as those families that do not participate in our services. 

• RIGHT: Follow Along Program monitors the development of children enrolled in the program by sending parents validated 
screening questionnaires. These questionnaires indicate how many children are not meeting developmental milestones; 
therefore requiring follow up by a public health nurse and also a possible referral to Early Childhood Special Education for an 
assessment.   Our current goal is to increase questionnaires that are completed and returned to us, which enables us to reach
more children.  This has been made possible by our current collaboration with the Goodhue County Child and Family 
Collaborative. As we can see our return rate averages around 60%. In 2017 or return rate was 37%. This increase is due to 
additional staff time dedicated to the program as well as new means of communicating with families. We continue to send 
text reminders to return the questionnaires, which has increased the number returned. We can also see that the number of 
children needing follow up has increased. This is likely due to the fact that we are simply identifying more children that need 
follow up. We have increased the number of screeners that are returned thus increasing the number of children that have 
been identified needing follow up. 

• LEFT: We will continue to offer home visits to clients to improve 
education and support, increase bonding and attachment, and in turn, 
reduce the risk of child abuse and neglect.

• CENTER: We will continue to educate on the importance of not smoking 
during pregnancy and continue to offer resources to assist with smoking 
cessation.

• RIGHT: We will continue to monitor the development of children and 
refer as appropriate.  This will assist children with staying on task for 
meeting developmental milestones and getting early intervention 
services as soon as possible to make sure they are school ready.

8

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Jan-19 Sep-19 May-20 Jan-21 Sep-21

Follow Along Statistics

% of Questionarres Completed &
Returned

% of Children Needing Follow-up

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

J F M A M J J A S O N D

Average #  Client Visits per Month
Family Home Visiting

2019 2020 2021


Chart1

		J		J		J		J

		F		F		F		F

		M		M		M		M

		A		A		A		A

		M		M		M		M

		J		J		J		J

		J		J		J		J

		A		A		A		A

		S		S		S		S

		O		O		O		O

		N		N		N		N

		D		D		D		D



Sheet1!#REF!

Sheet1!#REF!

2019

2020

Average #  Client Visits per Month
Family Home Visiting

94

128

80

96

77

78

82

105

75

105

83

104

115

115

95

103

96

103

139

102

87

90

109

90



Sheet1

				2019		2020		2021

		J		94		128		97

		F		80		96		93

		M		77		78		110

		A		82		105		108

		M		75		105		101

		J		83		104		102

		J		115		115

		A		95		103

		S		96		103

		O		139		102

		N		87		90

		D		109		90






Chart1

		2019		2019

		2020		2020

		2021 YTD		2021 YTD

				0.9



% of Non-smokers or Decreased smokers

Target: 90%

% of Pregnant Clients Who Were Either
Non-Smokers or Decreased Smoking 
During Pregnancy

0.88

0.9

0.8

0.9

0.78

0.9



Sheet1

				% of Non-smokers or Decreased smokers		Target: 90%

		2019		88%		90%

		2020		80%		90%

		2021 YTD		78%		90%

						90%






Chart1

		43484		43484

		43515		43515

		43543		43543

		43574		43574

		43604		43604

		43635		43635

		43665		43665

		43696		43696

		43727		43727

		43758		43758

		43790		43790

		43821		43821

		43850		43850

		43881		43881

		43910		43910

		43941		43941

		43971		43971

		44002		44002

		44032		44032

		44063		44063

		44094		44094

		44124		44124

		44155		44155

		44185		44185

		44217		44217

		44248		44248

		44276		44276

		44307		44307

		44337		44337

		44368		44368

		44398		44398

		44429		44429

		44460		44460



% of Questionarres Completed & Returned

% of Children Needing Follow-up

Follow Along Statistics

0.61

0.15

0.52

0.2

0.63

0.23

0.68

0.13

0.62

0.23

0.57

0.27

0.6

0.1

0.64

0.2

0.49

0.19

0.58

0.25

0.53

0.18

0.42

0.22

0.56

0.15

0.51

0.22

0.54

0.23

0.63

0.23

0.55

0.17

0.49

0.34

0.52

0.2

0.65

0.16

0.54

0.23

0.66

0.18

0.64

0.14

0.63

0.16

0.67

0.09

0.74

0.21

0.65

0.09

0.63

0.21

0.71

0.11

0.4

0.33

0.7

0.3

0.71

0.07

0.68

0.2



Sheet1

				% of Questionarres Completed & Returned		% of Children Needing Follow-up

		2016Q4		8%		0%

		2017Q1		5%		3%

		2017Q2		8%		0%

		2017Q3		8%		2%

		2017Q4		9%		0%

		2018 Q1		13%		0%

		2018 Q2		5%		0%

		2018 Q3		9%		2%

		2018 Q4		5%		5%

		Jan-19		61%		15%

		Feb-19		52%		20%

		Mar-19		63%		23%

		Apr-19		68%		13%

		May-19		62%		23%

		Jun-19		57%		27%

		Jul-19		60%		10%

		Aug-19		64%		20%

		Sep-19		49%		19%

		Oct-19		58%		25%

		Nov-19		53%		18%

		Dec-19		42%		22%

		Jan-20		56%		15%

		Feb-20		51%		22%

		Mar-20		54%		23%

		Apr-20		63%		23%

		May-20		55%		17%

		Jun-20		49%		34%

		Jul-20		52%		20%

		Aug-20		65%		16%

		Sep-20		54%		23%

		Oct-20		66%		18%

		Nov-20		64%		14%

		Dec-20		63%		16%

		Jan-21		67%		9%

		Feb-21		74%		21%

		Mar-21		65%		9%

		Apr-21		63%		21%

		May-21		71%		11%

		Jun-21		40%		33%

		Jul-21		70%		30%

		21-Aug		71%		7%

		21-Sep		68%		20%






Chart1

		J		J		J

		F		F		F

		M		M		M

		A		A		A

		M		M		M

		J		J		J

		J		J		J

		A		A		A

		S		S		S

		O		O		O

		N		N		N

		D		D		D



2019

2020

2021

Average #  Client Visits per Month
Family Home Visiting

94

128

97

80

96

93

77

78

110

82

105

108

75

105

101

83

104

102

115

115

114

95

103

114

96

103

131

139

102

87

90

109

90



Sheet1

				2019		2020		2021

		J		94		128		97

		F		80		96		93

		M		77		78		110

		A		82		105		108

		M		75		105		101

		J		83		104		102

		J		115		115		114

		A		95		103		114

		S		96		103		131

		O		139		102

		N		87		90

		D		109		90







Story Behind the Baseline

Public Health
WIC

Purpose/Role of Program

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

WIC is a nutrition education and food supplement program for pregnant and postpartum women, infants and children up to age 5. Eligibility is based 
on family size and income.  WIC participants are seen regularly by a Public Health Nurse who does a nutrition and health assessment, provides nutrition 
education and refers to appropriate resources.  WIC is federally funded.

0

200

400

600

800

Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

Ratio Total WIC Clients (women, infants, and children) 
per WIC Staff 

Participants /FTE Target: 500

• LEFT: WIC promotes a healthy weight.  The rates of obesity and overweight or at risk 
among Goodhue County WIC children 2 up to 5 years of age are stable and similar to 
the state average. Due to Covid-19, we began doing remote services mid-March and 
are continuing remote services. Therefore, we are not doing in clinic heights and 
weights on children. Please interpret the data on obesity and at risk for overweight 
with caution, as we are not documenting heights and weights routinely at this time.
**Numbers are decreasing and no data for several months now due to WIC remote 
services and getting weights on children.

• CENTER: The statewide WIC goal is to increase breastfeeding of infants 
0-12 months.  Breastfeeding initiation has increased; however, duration of 
breastfeeding continues to be an issue. WIC measures babies who are totally 
breastfed and babies who are receiving breastmilk and formula. Exclusively 
breastfed babies tend to breastfeed longer.  Babies receiving any breastmilk are 
still getting the benefits of breastfeeding.

RIGHT  L k  t t ffi  ti  t  d t i  d t  t ffi  

• LEFT: Offering nutrition education regarding healthy eating habits and the importance 
of physical activity.  Education is done with a 'participant centered' approach so that 
they have more ownership in making changes. 

• CENTER: We are participating in a statewide continuous quality improvement 
collaborative to improve breastfeeding rates in 2019.

• RIGHT: Outreach Activities include building rapport with clients to foster person-to-
person referrals (the majority of our referrals), communication with health care 
providers, newspaper articles, participation in health/resource fairs.  Although 
caseloads have decreased families that we are serving seem to have more 
issues/needs than we have seen in the past.

9

0%

20%

Jan-18 Jun-18 Nov-18 Apr-19 Sep-19 Feb-20 Jul-20 Dec-20 May-21

% WIC Children Obese and  Overweight/
At Risk

% Obese
% Overweight OR at Risk of being…

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%

Jan-19 Apr-19 Jul-19 Oct-19 Jan-20 Apr-20 Jul-20 Oct-20 Jan-21 Apr-21 Jul-21

% of WIC Infants that Are 
Breastfed

% Fully BF % Any BF


Chart1

		43484		43484

		43515		43515

		43543		43543

		43574		43574

		43604		43604

		43635		43635

		43665		43665

		43696		43696

		43727		43727

		43757		43757

		43788		43788

		43818		43818

		43850		43850

		43881		43881

		43910		43910

		43941		43941

		43971		43971

		44002		44002

		44032		44032

		44063		44063

		44094		44094

		44124		44124

		44155		44155

		44185		44185

		44217		44217

		44248		44248

		44276		44276

		44307		44307

		44337		44337

		44368		44368

		44398		44398

		44429		44429

		44460		44460

				500



Participants /FTE

Target: 500

Ratio Total WIC Clients (women, infants, and children) per WIC Staff

463

500

502

500

536

500

480

500

512

500

599

500

486

500

513

500

552

500

451

500

531

500

468

500

421

500

442

500

629

500

492

500

652

500

618

500

484

500

653

500

733

500

590

500

653

500

638

500

711

500

774

500

601

500

599

500

639

500

647

500

627

500

558

500

511

500



Sheet1

				Participants /FTE		Target: 500

		Jan-19		463		500

		Feb-19		502		500

		Mar-19		536		500

		Apr-19		480		500

		May-19		512		500

		Jun-19		599		500

		Jul-19		486		500

		Aug-19		513		500

		Sep-19		552		500

		Oct-19		451		500

		Nov-19		531		500

		Dec-19		468		500

		Jan-20		421		500

		Feb-20		442		500

		Mar-20		629		500

		Apr-20		492		500

		May-20		652		500

		Jun-20		618		500

		Jul-20		484		500

		Aug-20		653		500

		Sep-20		733		500

		Oct-20		590		500

		Nov-20		653		500

		Dec-20		638		500

		Jan-21		711		500

		Feb-21		774		500

		Mar-21		601		500

		Apr-21		599		500

		May-21		639		500

		Jun-21		647		500

		21-Jul		627		500

		21-Aug		558		500

		21-Sep		511		500

						500

						500

						500






Chart1

		43101		43101		43101		43101

		43132		43132		43132		43132

		43160		43160		43160		43160

		43191		43191		43191		43191

		43221		43221		43221		43221

		43252		43252		43252		43252

		43282		43282		43282		43282

		43313		43313		43313		43313

		43344		43344		43344		43344

		43374		43374		43374		43374

		43405		43405		43405		43405

		43435		43435		43435		43435

		43484		43484		43484		43484

		43515		43515		43515		43515

		43543		43543		43543		43543

		43574		43574		43574		43574

		43604		43604		43604		43604

		43635		43635		43635		43635

		43665		43665		43665		43665

		43696		43696		43696		43696

		43728		43728		43728		43728

		43759		43759		43759		43759

		43791		43791		43791		43791

		43822		43822		43822		43822

		43850		43850		43850		43850

		43881		43881		43881		43881

		43910		43910		43910		43910

		43941		43941		43941		43941

		43971		43971		43971		43971

		44002		44002		44002		44002

		44032		44032		44032		44032

		44063		44063		44063		44063

		44094		44094		44094		44094

		44124		44124		44124		44124

		44155		44155		44155		44155

		44185		44185		44185		44185

		44217		44217		44217		44217

		44248		44248		44248		44248

		44276		44276		44276		44276

		44307		44307		44307		44307

		44337		44337		44337		44337

		44368		44368		44368		44368

		44398		44398		44398		44398

		44429		44429		44429		44429

		44460		44460		44460		44460



% Obese

% Overweight OR at Risk of being Overweight

% WIC Children Obese and  Overweight/

At Ris

0.05

0.12

0.08

0.14

0.11

0.16

0.12

0.17

0.12

0.17

0.13

0.18

0.13

0.17

0.1

0.19

0.09

0.19

0.08

0.19

0.083

0.2

0.07

0.2

0.05

0.21

0.05

0.22

0.07

0.21

0.07

0.2

0.07

0.21

0.08

0.19

0.09

0.19

0.1

0.18

0.11

0.2

0.13

0.19

0.13

0.2

0.12

0.22

0.11

0.23

0.1

0.23

0.08

0.22

0.08

0.2

0.07

0.19

0.06

0.19

0.05

0.17

0.04

0.15

0.04

0.14

0.03

0.12

0.02

0.11

0.01

0.1

0.01

0.08

0.0005

0.08

0.06

0.06

0.05

0.05

0.04

0.04

0.04



Sheet1

				% Obese		% Overweight OR at Risk of being Overweight

		Jan-18		5%		12%

		Feb-18		8%		14%

		Mar-18		11%		16%

		Apr-18		12%		17%

		May-18		12%		17%

		Jun-18		13%		18%

		Jul-18		13%		17%

		Aug-18		10%		19%

		Sep-18		9%		19%

		Oct-18		8%		19%

		Nov-18		8%		20%

		Dec-18		7%		20%

		Jan-19		5%		21%

		Feb-19		5%		22%

		Mar-19		7%		21%

		Apr-19		7%		20%

		May-19		7%		21%

		Jun-19		8%		19%

		Jul-19		9%		19%

		Aug-19		10%		18%

		Sep-19		11%		20%

		Oct-19		13%		19%

		Nov-19		13%		20%

		Dec-19		12%		22%

		Jan-20		11%		23%

		Feb-20		10%		23%

		Mar-20		8%		22%

		Apr-20		8%		20%

		May-20		7%		19%

		Jun-20		6%		19%

		Jul-20		5%		17%

		Aug-20		4%		15%

		Sep-20		4%		14%

		Oct-20		3%		12%

		Nov-20		2%		11%

		Dec-20		1%		10%

		Jan-21		1%		8%

		Feb-21		0%		8%

		Mar-21				6%

		Apr-21				6%

		May-21				5%

		Jun-21				5%

		Jul-21				4%

		Aug-21				4%

		Sep-21				4%






Chart1

		43484		43484		43484

		43515		43515		43515

		43543		43543		43543

		43574		43574		43574

		43604		43604		43604

		43635		43635		43635

		43665		43665		43665

		43696		43696		43696

		43728		43728		43728

		43759		43759		43759

		43791		43791		43791

		43822		43822		43822

		43850		43850		43850

		43881		43881		43881

		43910		43910		43910

		43941		43941		43941

		43971		43971		43971

		44002		44002		44002

		44032		44032		44032

		44063		44063		44063

		44094		44094		44094

		44124		44124		44124

		44155		44155		44155

		44185		44185		44185

		44217		44217		44217

		44248		44248		44248

		44276		44276		44276

		44307		44307		44307

		44337		44337		44337

		44368		44368		44368

		44398		44398		44398

		44429		44429		44429

		44460		44460		44460



% Fully BF

% Any BF

% of WIC Infants that Are Breastfed

0.17

0.16

0.18

0.16

0.21

0.14

0.21

0.17

0.21

0.15

0.23

0.15

0.24

0.15

0.22

0.16

0.21

0.14

0.19

0.14

0.17

0.1

0.17

0.14

0.15

0.16

0.16

0.12

0.18

0.15

0.19

0.14

0.2

0.11

0.21

0.12

0.24

0.13

0.24

0.14

0.21

0.14

0.21

0.13

0.19

0.13

0.2

0.12

0.21

0.14

0.19

0.14

0.18

0.14

0.18

0.11

0.16

0.11

0.15

0.15

0.13

0.14

0.12

0.14

0.15

0.16



Sheet1

				% Fully BF		% Any BF

		Jan-19		17%		16%

		Feb-19		18%		16%

		Mar-19		21%		14%

		Apr-19		21%		17%

		May-19		21%		15%

		Jun-19		23%		15%

		Jul-19		24%		15%

		Aug-19		22%		16%

		Sep-19		21%		14%

		Oct-19		19%		14%

		Nov-19		17%		10%

		Dec-19		17%		14%

		Jan-20		15%		16%

		20-Feb		16%		12%

		Mar-20		18%		15%

		Apr-20		19%		14%

		May-20		20%		11%

		Jun-20		21%		12%

		Jul-20		24%		13%

		Aug-20		24%		14%

		Sep-20		21%		14%

		Oct-20		21%		13%

		Nov-20		19%		13%

		Dec-20		20%		12%

		Jan-21		21%		14%

		Feb-21		19%		14%

		Mar-21		18%		14%

		Apr-21		18%		11%

		May-21		16%		11%

		Jun-21		15%		15%

		Jul-21		13%		14%

		21-Aug		12%		14%

		21-Sep		15%		16%







Story Behind the Baseline

Public Health
Live Well Goodhue County

Purpose/Role of Program

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2018* 2019* 2020*

Average Score on Sustainability 
Checklist for Funded Mini-Grants

average % score Target: 75%

Live Well Goodhue County’s mission is to improve the health of our residents by making it easier to be active, eat nutritious foods & live tobacco-free. 
We partner with child care providers, schools, worksites, cities, non-profits and other organizations.  We provide mini-grants for sustainable projects 
that fit within our mission.  We are supported by the Minnesota Statewide Health Improvement Partnership of the Minnesota Department of Health.

• LEFT: Our current partners are Cannon Falls School District, Pine Island School District, 
Red Wing School District, St. John’s Lutheran School, and Kenyon-Wanamingo School 
District. 

• CENTER: Mini-grants are available to community organizations, child care providers, 
schools, worksites, non-profits and other organizations that are interested in partnering 
with us to improve the health of our residents.  The focus must be on making it safer and 
easier to walk, bike, eat nutritious food and live tobacco-free

• RIGHT: A sustainability survey will be sent out to partners implementing a Live Well 
Goodhue County initiative in November 2021.

*2019 grant year=11/1/18 – 10/31/19, *2020 grant  year=11/1/19-10/31/20, *2021 grant 
year=11/1/20-10/31/21

• LEFT: Live Well Goodhue County staff are working to develop 
partnerships with all our schools.  This year the focus is working 
with new school wellness committees, Safe Routes to School, 
physical activity and increasing access to healthy foods.

• CENTER: Mini-grants are available throughout our grant year.    
Staff members are actively working to build relationships with 
potential partners while encouraging past and current partners to 
implement an initiative. 

• RIGHT: Our Sustainability Survey will be sent to our 2021 
partners in November.

0

2,000

4,000

2018* 2019* 2020* 2021*

# Students Reached by School 
Strategies

# of Students Reached

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

Nov-Jan
2020

May-Jul Nov-Jan
2021

May-Jul

% Mini Grant Funds Awarded

% Mini Grant Funds Awarded Target

10


Chart1

		2018*		2018*

		2019*		2019*

		2020*		2020*



average % score

Target: 75%

Average Score on Sustainability Checklist for Funded Mini-Grants

0.71

0.75

0.65

0.75

0.74

0.75



Sheet1

				average % score		Target: 75%

		2018*		71%		75%

		2019*		65%		75%

		2020*		74%		75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%

						75%






Chart1

		2018*

		2019*

		2020*

		2021*



# of Students Reached

# Students Reached by School Strategies

6288

3298

3786

6193



Sheet1

				# of Students Reached

		2018*		6,288

		2019*		3,298

		2020*		3,786

		2021*		6,193






Chart1

		Nov-Jan 2020		Nov-Jan 2020

		Feb-Apr		Feb-Apr

		May-Jul		May-Jul

		Aug-Oct		Aug-Oct

		Nov-Jan 2021		Nov-Jan 2021

		Feb-Apr		Feb-Apr

		May-Jul		May-Jul

		Aug-Oct		Aug-Oct



% Mini Grant Funds Awarded

Target

% Mini Grant Funds Awarded

0.35

0.25

0.56

0.5

0.64

0.75

0.75

1

0.59

0.25

0.87

0.5

0.97

0.75

0.95

1



Sheet1

				% Mini Grant Funds Awarded		Target

		Nov-Jan 2020		35%		25%

		Feb-Apr		56%		50%

		May-Jul		64%		75%

		Aug-Oct		75%		100%

		Nov-Jan 2021		59%		25%

		Feb-Apr		87%		50%

		May-Jul		97%		75%

		Aug-Oct		95%		100%







Story Behind the Baseline

Public Health
Healthy Communities
Toward Zero Deaths

Purpose/Role of Program
Healthy Communities Unit promotes healthy behaviors and health equity with programs such as Live Well Goodhue County, Emergency Preparedness, Towards Zero Deaths 
(TZD), and Make it OK. Staff engage the community in developing and implementing strategies.  
Towards Zero Deaths is based on the belief that even one traffic-related death on our roads is unacceptable.   TZD uses an interdisciplinary, data-driven approach to reduce 
traffic fatalities and is funded by a grant from the Minnesota Department of Public Safety. Our goal is to maintain a balance of active representation from each “E.”

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

• LEFT: Staff time face to face with community fell below our goal of 10% or 4 hrs. per 
full-time staff per week in 2020. This measure does not include COVID Response time.  
In 2021, it began to increase as staff have gradually been reassigned to regular duties.

• CENTER: Our goal is to maintain a balance of representation from each “E” because a 
combination of strategies and approaches are often most effective. Due to COVID-19 
there were limited TZD events and activities in 2020 and 2021.

• RIGHT: Much of the TZD safe roads grant activity revolves around the “enforcement 
wave” calendar, busiest from April to September. Due to COVID-19 there limited TZD 
events and activities in 2020 and 2021.

• LEFT: As we restart regular duties, face to face time will 
increase again.  It may decrease from November-January if 
Healthy Communities staff are reassigned to booster clinics.

• CENTER: Engage existing members and recruit new members 
in the 4 sectors of education, enforcement, engineering, and 
emergency medical services (EMS). 

• RIGHT:  A lot of coalition members are new due to turnover 
and it’s extra challenging to engage them due to the pandemic.

11

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

Jul-Sept -20 Oct- Dec- 20 Jan-Mar- 21 Apr-Jun-21

Active TZD Coalition Members

Enforcement Engineering EMS Education

0

20

40

60

80

Oct-Dec Jan-Mar Apr-Jun Jul-Sept

TZD Grant Volunteer Hours

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21



Story Behind the Baseline

Public Health
Waiver Management Team

Purpose/Role of Program

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0

50

100

150

200

2019
Q1

2019
Q3

2020
Q1

2020
Q3

2021
Q1

2021
Q3

# of Referrals 
Received

# of New Referrals

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2019 Q1 2019 Q2 2019 Q3 2019 Q4 2020 Q1 2020 Q2 2020 Q3 2020 Q4 2021 Q1 2021 Q2

% of Referrals Completed within 20 Days

% of Referrals Completed within 20 Days Goal

Home and Community Based Services are provided to residents of counties in Minnesota to help keep them in their homes or the least restrictive 
environment safely.

• LEFT:  The increase in referrals this year show a rise in waiver program referrals. 
This means that residents are choosing to remain in their homes longer with 
services and supports rather than going into institutional care. 

• CENTER: Staff returned to in-person client visits in Quarter 3, 2021.  Some visits 
continue through video or phone at the clients discretion.  Visits are important to 
the work as they give staff an opportunity to know the people, assess their 
individual needs and their environment, build rapport, and assist people to meet 
their needs.  Staff follow person-centered planning practices and strive to have 
people in the least restrictive environment that meets their individual needs.  Staff 
work closely with other departments and agencies to ensure needs are met.

• RIGHT:  New customer referrals take on average 7-12 hours of the assessor’s time 
to complete and with the rise in referrals, plus an increase in case load size, it is 
becoming more challenging to meet the 20 day requirement 100% of the time. 

• Left: Continue to educate residents about the services we 
provide and how to access those services, so residents can 
receive the support they need.

• Center: Visits equal revenue, so we want to maintain visit 
counts.  Our case managers build rapport with clients and 
increased visits maintains this working relationship to ensure 
health and safety needs are met in the least restrictive 
environment.

• Right: We need to strive to be 100% compliant with 
completing screens in 20 days.  Timely screens means timely 
services to the people we serve.

12

0

500

1000

1500

2019
Q1

2019
Q3

2020
Q1

2020
Q3

2021
Q1

2021
Q3

Number of Visits Completed

# Completed Visits


Chart1

		2019 Q1

		2019 Q2

		2019 Q3

		2019 Q4

		2020 Q1

		2020 Q2

		2020 Q3

		2020 Q4

		2021 Q1

		2021 Q2

		2021 Q3



# of New Referrals

# of Referrals Received

114

125

105

100

137

133

133

124

222

237

176



Sheet1

				# of New Referrals

		2019 Q1		114

		2019 Q2		125

		2019 Q3		105

		2019 Q4		100

		2020 Q1		137

		2020 Q2		133

		2020 Q3		133

		2020 Q4		124

		2021 Q1		222

		2021 Q2		237

		2021 Q3		176

						50%






Chart1

		2019 Q1		2019 Q1

		2019 Q2		2019 Q2

		2019 Q3		2019 Q3

		2019 Q4		2019 Q4

		2020 Q1		2020 Q1

		2020 Q2		2020 Q2

		2020 Q3		2020 Q3

		2020 Q4		2020 Q4

		2021 Q1		2021 Q1

		2021 Q2		2021 Q2



% of Referrals Completed within 20 Days

Goal

% of Referrals Completed within 20 Days

0.99

1

0.99

1

0.99

1

0.99

1

1

1

1

1

0.95

1

0.98

1

0.88

1

0.77

1



Sheet1

				% of Referrals Completed within 20 Days		Goal

		2019 Q1		99%		100%

		2019 Q2		99%		100%

		2019 Q3		99%		100%

		2019 Q4		99%		100%

		2020 Q1		100%		100%

		2020 Q2		100%		100%

		2020 Q3		95%		100%

		2020 Q4		98%		100%

		2021 Q1		88%		100%

		2021 Q2		77%		100%

		2021 Q3		91%		100%






Chart1

		2019 Q1

		2019 Q2

		2019 Q3

		2019 Q4

		2020 Q1

		2020 Q2

		2020 Q3

		2020 Q4

		2021 Q1

		2021 Q2

		2021 Q3



# Completed Visits

Number of Visits Completed

1037

1057

1010

967

1095

642

842

736

1011

1144

1312



Sheet1

				# Completed Visits

		2019 Q1		1037

		2019 Q2		1057

		2019 Q3		1010

		2019 Q4		967

		2020 Q1		1095

		2020 Q2		642

		2020 Q3		842

		2020 Q4		736

		2021 Q1		1011

		2021 Q2		1144

		2021 Q3		1312







Purpose/Role of Program

Public Health
Waiver Services in Action: Jane Lives at Home

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

Also, the waiver team helped Jane’s mom become part of the Consumer Directed Community Support (CDCS) service—a service that allows flexibility in 
managing the goods and services Jane receives.  One flexibility CDCS offers is the ability for a parent to be a paid caregiver to best support their child’s 
disability related needs.  This flexibility eases the stress on Jane’s family to find and train alternative caregivers.   

The waiver program enabled Jane to live in the least restrictive setting that best meets her needs—her home.  Not only does living in her home benefit Jane 
and her family, it also benefits the county, as it’s more cost effective to live at home than a facility.

*Name changed to protect the client’s identity

Home and Community Based Services (aka Waiver Services) help keep residents in their homes or the least restrictive environment safely.

13

Jane* is a child with severe developmental disabilities and spends the majority of her day 
in a wheel chair.  Before qualified for a waiver, everyday tasks presented strenuous 
challenges for Jane and her family.  Jane’s family lifted her out of her wheelchair and 
carried her in and out of their home every time they left the house.  Jane required 
assistance to take a shower and even to reach the bathroom sink to wash her hands.  
Hallway carpeting made it difficult for Jane’s wheelchair to maneuver from one room to 
another.  Additionally, no daycares would take Jane due to the severity of her disabilities.  
This created a financial strain on the family.  

Goodhue County’s Waiver team helped make daily living safer and more accessible for 
Jane and her family.  Jane’s case manager completed a home assessment and identified 
ways to improve access.  The case manager then got bids on recommended projects and 
construction began.  The following three projects were completed:

• A lift was installed so Jane could have a safe passage into the home and not have to 
be carried

• The bathroom was remodeled and updated with a roll-in shower stall and roll-under 
sink that fosters independence

• The hallway carpeting was replaced with hardwood for safer and easier passage



Story Behind the Baseline

Social Services
Adult Protection

Purpose/Role of Program

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

• LEFT: In Goodhue County, 100% of vulnerable adults who experience maltreatment did 
not experience repeated maltreatment of the same type within six months.  This is 
positive and is better than the statewide average! MN DHS issued specific guidance 
regarding face to face visits during COVID to protect vulnerable populations by 
encouraging staff to use collateral sources via telephone or video in lieu of in person 
visits whenever possible.  

• RIGHT: The requests for pre-petition screenings (PPS) for civil commitments has 
drastically increased in 2021.   We have reached our yearly average by mid June!!  Since 
tracking this data, we have never had monthly requests be 10 or 11.  The people we are 
seeing are very complicated and really sick.   Placements for people under civil 
commitment have been more challenging and time consuming to find due to COVID.   It 
seems that people are really struggling in our community and posing safety threats 
much more than in the past.  

*Starting in 2020, we are tracking the # of pre-petition screening requests vs civil commitments, which better 
  k    ll i  l  i  i  d

0

5

10

15

20

25

Jan-19 Oct-19 Jul-20 Apr-21

# Open Adult Protection 
Cases

# Open Adult Protection Cases 0

2

4

6

8

10

12

J F M A M J J A S O N D

# of Pre-Petition Screening Requests 

2019 2020 2021

• LEFT: In adult protection, DHS has offered more guidance 
and training and we’re working on standardizing our 
approach to adult protection assessments. The state is 
actively working on the vulnerable adult redesign 
process. 

• RIGHT: We continue to use community based programs, 
such as the South Country Health Alliance Healthy 
Pathways program, with the hope of decreasing the need 
for higher level of care services including civil 
commitment.   It’s positive that we are receiving requests 
for PPS to ensure safety and that there may more 
understanding of the services/mandates we provide.  

Adult Protection is a mandated service and is funded by county, state, and federal dollars. Counties are responsible for investigating reports that happen in the 
community and in Emergency Protective Services situations, while the state is primarily responsible for reports in facilities.  Social Services is the Pre-Petition 
Screening (PPS) Agency to determine if a person meets criteria for Civil Commitment and is not willing to participate in voluntarily services in order to meet basic 
needs or safety due to Mental Illness, Chemical Dependency (or both) or Developmental Disability.   Civil Commitment is an involuntary process and we follow MN 
Statutes.

14


Chart1

		43466		43466

		43497		43497

		43525		43525

		43574		43574

		43604		43604

		43635		43635

		43665		43665

		43696		43696

		43727		43727

		43757		43757

		43788		43788

		43818		43818

		43850		43850

		43881		43881

		43910		43910

		43941		43941

		43971		43971

		44002		44002

		44032		44032

		44063		44063

		44094		44094

		44124		44124

		44155		44155

		44185		44185

		44217		44217

		44248		44248

		44276		44276

		44307		44307

		44337		44337

		44368		44368

		44398		44398

		44429		44429

		44460		44460



# Open Adult Protection Cases

# Open Adult Protection Cases

20

17

19

19

21

22

21

18

18

17

15

16

19

20

22

23

22

17

17

13

12

12

10

11

12

16

17

16

18

18

19

14

17



Sheet1

				# Open Adult Protection Cases

		Jan-19		20

		Feb-19		17

		Mar-19		19

		Apr-19		19

		May-19		21

		Jun-19		22

		Jul-19		21

		Aug-19		18

		Sep-19		18

		Oct-19		17

		Nov-19		15

		Dec-19		16

		Jan-20		19

		Feb-20		20

		Mar-20		22

		Apr-20		23

		May-20		22

		Jun-20		17

		Jul-20		17

		Aug-20		13

		Sep-20		12

		Oct-20		12

		Nov-20		10

		Dec-20		11

		Jan-21		12

		Feb-21		16

		Mar-21		17

		Apr-21		16

		May-21		18

		Jun-21		18

		Jul-21		19

		21-Aug		14

		21-Sep		17






Chart1

		J		J		J

		F		F		F

		M		M		M

		A		A		A

		M		M		M

		J		J		J

		J		J		J

		A		A		A

		S		S		S

		O		O		O

		N		N		N

		D		D		D



2019

2020

2021

# of Pre-Petition Screening Requests

1

6

5

2

2

4

0

4

10

0

1

4

2

4

1

2

7

11

2

7

8

4

2

9

2

2

6

4

3

3

4

2

2



Sheet1

				2019		2020		2021

		J		1		6		5

		F		2		2		4

		M		0		4		10

		A		0		1		4

		M		2		4		1

		J		2		7		11

		J		2		7		8

		A		4		2		9

		S		2		2		6

		O		4		3

		N		3		4

		D		2		2







Story Behind the Baseline

Social Services
Child Protection

Purpose/Role of Program

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2019 2020 2021 YTD

% Children Getting Monthly Face to Face with Social 
Worker

% Children getting monthly face to face with Social Worker Target

Counties are required by state law to respond to reports of child maltreatment, conduct assessments/investigations, and provide ongoing services and 
support to  prevent future maltreatment.  Child protection is funded by county, state and federal dollars.  

• LEFT: The number of child protection reports has increased and is consistent with the number of reports 
pre-pandemic.  

• CENTER: We continue to see children within the timelines required by statute.  Waivers that allowed for 
video contact have expired and we have resumed face to face contact in all child protection assessment and 
investigations.  

• RIGHT: We continue to work to return to the target for seeing children and youth monthly.  The expiration 
of the emergency waivers has meant that workers are on the road most of the week.  Caseload size is 
currently high and divided among five workers.  We look forward to returning to full staff this fall, when we 
will be fully staffed again.  

• LEFT : We are hopeful that the addition of the School Attendance Specialist 
will help us respond preventatively to families as declining school attendance 
is often an early indication of other family risk factors. 

• CENTER: Prioritizing safety continues to guide our work and the timeliness 
of our initial response indicates this.  Children are seen as soon as possible 
after a report is received.  

• RIGHT: As facilities remove visitation limitations, our face to face contacts wil  
also improve.  Our sixth child protection case manager will return to work in 
October and caseload size will return to the target of 10-12 per case manager.  

15

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jan-19 Jul-19 Jan-20 Jul-20 Jan-21 Jul-21

# of  Assessments/Investigations

# of Assessments/Investigations

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

100%

2018 2019 2020 2021 YTD

% Children Seen Within Mandatory 
Timelines

% Children seen within Mandatory timelines Target


Chart1

		2018		2018

		2019		2019

		2020		2020

		2021 YTD		2021 YTD



% Children seen within Mandatory timelines

Target

% Children Seen Within Mandatory Timelines

0.97

0.9

0.97

0.9

0.94

0.9

95

0.9



Sheet1

				% Children seen within Mandatory timelines		Target

		2018		97%		90%

		2019		97%		90%

		2020		94%		90%

		2021 YTD		95		90%






Chart1

		2019		2019

		2020		2020

		2021 YTD		2021 YTD



% Children getting monthly face to face with Social Worker

Target

% Children Getting Monthly Face to Face with Social Worker

0.95

0.9

0.86

0.9

0.93

0.9



Sheet1

				% Children getting monthly face to face with Social Worker		Target

		2019		95%		90%

		2020		86%		90%

		2021 YTD		93%		90%






Chart1

		Jan-14

		15

		16

		10

		20

		11

		10

		11

		13

		15

		14

		14

		Jan-15

		11

		22

		24

		24

		6

		12

		16

		31

		30

		20

		17

		Jan-16

		26

		16

		29

		18

		17

		18

		19

		25

		18

		22

		18

		Jan-17

		22

		17

		18

		31

		28

		21

		30

		20

		28

		19

		16

		Jan-18

		21

		27

		22

		19

		23

		22

		11

		17

		28

		22

		19

		Jan-19

		20

		34



# of Assessments/Investigations

# of  Assessments/Investigations

13

18

20

21

25

21



Sheet1

				# of Assessments/Investigations

		Jan-14		13

				15

				16

				10

				20

				11

				10

				11

				13

				15

				14

				14

		Jan-15		18

				11

				22

				24

				24

				6

				12

				16

				31

				30

				20

				17

		Jan-16		20

				26

				16

				29

				18

				17

				18

				19

				25

				18

				22

				18

		Jan-17		21

				22

				17

				18

				31

				28

				21

				30

				20

				28

				19

				16

		Jan-18		25

				21

				27

				22

				19

				23

				22

				11

				17

				28

				22

				19

		Jan-19		21

				20

				34






Chart1

		43466

		43497

		43525

		43574

		43604

		43635

		43665

		43696

		43727

		43757

		43788

		43800

		43850

		43881

		43910

		43941

		43971

		44002

		44032

		44063

		44094

		44124

		44155

		44185

		44217

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368

		44398

		44429



# of Assessments/Investigations

# of  Assessments/Investigations

21

20

34

20

23

16

16

29

25

29

24

21

16

30

19

15

21

10

12

17

18

25

21

14

20

17

15

24

20

22

19

17



Sheet1

				# of Assessments/Investigations

		Jan-19		21

		Feb-19		20

		Mar-19		34

		Apr-19		20

		May-19		23

		Jun-19		16

		Jul-19		16

		Aug-19		29

		Sep-19		25

		Oct-19		29

		Nov-19		24

		Dec-19		21

		Jan-20		16

		Feb-20		30

		Mar-20		19

		Apr-20		15

		May-20		21

		Jun-20		10

		Jul-20		12

		Aug-20		17

		Sep-20		18

		Oct-20		25

		Nov-20		21

		Dec-20		14

		Jan-21		20

		Feb-21		17

		Mar-21		15

		Apr-21		24

		May-21		20

		Jun-21		22

		Jul-21		19

		21-Aug		17

		21-Sep		15






Chart1

		2018		2018

		2019		2019

		2020		2020

		2021 YTD		2021 YTD



% Children seen within Mandatory timelines

Target

% Children Seen Within Mandatory Timelines

0.97

0.9

0.97

0.9

0.95

0.9

0.95

0.9



Sheet1

				% Children seen within Mandatory timelines		Target

		2018		97%		90%

		2019		97%		90%

		2020		95%		90%

		2021 YTD		95%		90%







Story Behind the Baseline

Social Services
Adult Mental Health

Purpose/Role of Program

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

# Utilizing SCHA Healthy 
Pathways Program

# Utilizing Healthy Pathways Program

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

100%

Jan.
2019

Jan.
2020

Jan.
2021

% Targeted Case Management 
(TCM) Clients with Monthly 

Contact

% targeted case management clients with
Monthly Contact
Target: 81%

Counties are required to provide Adult Mental Health (AMH) case management to clients who meet the eligibility criteria.   AMH case management is 
funded by a combination of county, state and federal funds, including Medical Assistance/PMAP funding.   We know that offering voluntary services can 
minimize crisis situations that may involve pre-petition screening for civil commitment, Emergency Room visits, detox stays, and incarceration (all of 
which may be intrusive and costly).  

• LEFT: Caseloads continue to be tracked with each referral. Our team has experienced changes 
due to a retirement and internal promotion, which lead to two new hires.  While new workers 
are oriented, changes in caseloads are expected. 

• CENTER: Healthy Pathways is a  South Country Health Alliance (SCHA) program focusing on 
providing early intervention to persons exhibiting mental illness to avoid crisis (such as 
incarceration or civil commitment).  

• RIGHT: With guidance from DHS, we have been able to have phone or video contact with 
clients and still bill for TCM due to COVID. We know that face to face contact is best so we are 
striving to see clients in person, safely, when possible.  In June staff achieved greater than 90% 
targeted case management contacts and have consistently been over 85% average for the year 
2020.  2020 billing for TCM is on track to be higher than previous years. The 3rd quarter of 2020, 
we billed over 19% more than the 3rd quarter in 2019.  This is due to the social workers and 
support staff being very diligent.  

• LEFT, CENTER & RIGHT: Staff ensure clients receive 
monthly contact which allows quality services with 
prevention focus, along with maximizing revenue for 
continued services. 

• During COVID, services have been more challenging for 
our clients to participate in.  Through CARES Act funding, 
we have been able to get those in need an electronic 
device, so they are able to connect electronically with us 
and other providers (mental health, physical health, etc.) 
to treat their illnesses and decrease isolation. 

16

220
240
260
280
300

Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

# Adult Mental Health Cases

# of Adult Mental Health Cases


Chart1

		43466

		43497

		43525

		43574

		43604

		43635

		43665

		43696

		43727

		43757

		43788

		43818

		43850

		43881

		43910

		43941

		43971

		44002

		44032

		44063

		44094

		44124

		44155

		44185

		44217

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368



# of Adult Mental Health Cases

# Adult Mental Health Cases

270

265

273

271

276

279

277

274

267

270

263

262

264

272

278

277

277

273

264

251

258



Sheet1

				# of Adult Mental Health Cases

		Jan-19		270

		Feb-19		265

		Mar-19		273

		Apr-19		271

		May-19		276

		Jun-19		279

		Jul-19		277

		Aug-19		274

		Sep-19		267

		Oct-19		270

		Nov-19		263

		Dec-19		262

		Jan-20		264

		Feb-20		272

		Mar-20		278

		Apr-20		277

		May-20		277

		Jun-20		273

		Jul-20		264

		Aug-20		251

		Sep-20		258

		Oct-20

		Nov-20

		Dec-20

		Jan-21

		Feb-21

		Mar-21

		Apr-21

		May-21

		Jun-21






Chart1

		43466

		43497

		43525

		43574

		43604

		43635

		43665

		43696

		43727

		43758

		43790

		43821

		43850

		43881

		43910

		43941

		43971

		44002

		44032

		44063

		44094

		44124

		44155

		44185

		44217

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368

		44398

		44429

		44460



# Utilizing Healthy Pathways Program

# Utilizing SCHA Healthy Pathways Program

45

56

49

50

48

45

47

46

45

40

37

35

33

31

35

36

34

33

32

31

32

31

30

29

30

32

31

32

32

33

32

30

30



Sheet1

				# Utilizing Healthy Pathways Program

		Jan-19		45

		Feb-19		56

		Mar-19		49

		Apr-19		50

		May-19		48

		Jun-19		45

		Jul-19		47

		Aug-19		46

		Sep-19		45

		Oct-19		40

		Nov-19		37

		Dec-19		35

		Jan-20		33

		Feb-20		31

		Mar-20		35

		Apr-20		36

		May-20		34

		Jun-20		33

		Jul-20		32

		Aug-20		31

		Sep-20		32

		Oct-20		31

		Nov-20		30

		Dec-20		29

		Jan-21		30

		Feb-21		32

		Mar-21		31

		Apr-21		32

		May-21		32

		Jun-21		33

		Jul-21		32

		Aug-21		30

		Sep-21		30






Chart1

		Jan. 2019		Jan. 2019

		0.93		0.81

		0.89		0.81

		0.87		0.81

		0.87		0.81

		0.82		0.81

		0.83		0.81

		0.81		0.81

		0.85		0.81

		0.87		0.81

		0.85		0.81

		0.86		0.81

		Jan. 2020		Jan. 2020

		0.87		0.81

		0.83		0.81

		0.88		0.81

		0.9		0.81

		0.91		0.81

		0.9		0.81

		0.91		0.81

		0.92		0.81

		0.91		0.81

		0.89		0.81

		0.9		0.81

		Jan. 2021		Jan. 2021

		0.9		0.81

		0.89		0.81

		0.89		0.81

		0.9		0.81

		0.95		0.81

		0.89		0.81

		0.88		0.81

		0.87		0.81



% targeted case management clients with Monthly Contact

Target: 81%

% Targeted Case Management (TCM) Clients with Monthly Contact

0.91

0.81

0.89

0.81

0.9

0.81



Sheet1

				% targeted case management clients with Monthly Contact		Target: 81%

		Jan. 2019		91%		81%

				93%		81%

				89%		81%

				87%		81%

				87%		81%

				82%		81%

				83%		81%

				81%		81%

				85%		81%

				87%		81%

				85%		81%

				86%		81%

		Jan. 2020		89%		81%

				87%		81%

				83%		81%

				88%		81%

				90%		81%

				91%		81%

				90%		81%

				91%		81%

				92%		81%

				91%		81%

				89%		81%

				90%		81%

		Jan. 2021		90%		81%

				90%		81%

				89%		81%

				89%		81%

				90%		81%

				95%		81%

				89%		81%

				88%		81%

				87%		81%






Chart1

		43466

		43497

		43525

		43574

		43604

		43635

		43665

		43696

		43727

		43757

		43788

		43818

		43850

		43881

		43910

		43941

		43971

		44002

		44032

		44063

		44094

		44124

		44155

		44185

		44217

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368

		44398

		44429

		44460



# of Adult Mental Health Cases

# Adult Mental Health Cases

270

265

273

271

276

279

277

274

267

270

263

262

264

272

278

277

277

273

264

251

258

257

262

266

268

256

259

263

269

268

271

275

261



Sheet1

				# of Adult Mental Health Cases

		Jan-19		270

		Feb-19		265

		Mar-19		273

		Apr-19		271

		May-19		276

		Jun-19		279

		Jul-19		277

		Aug-19		274

		Sep-19		267

		Oct-19		270

		Nov-19		263

		Dec-19		262

		Jan-20		264

		Feb-20		272

		Mar-20		278

		Apr-20		277

		May-20		277

		Jun-20		273

		Jul-20		264

		Aug-20		251

		Sep-20		258

		Oct-20		257

		Nov-20		262

		Dec-20		266

		Jan-21		268

		Feb-21		256

		Mar-21		259

		Apr-21		263

		May-21		269

		Jun-21		268

		Jul-21		271

		21-Aug		275

		21-Sep		261







Story Behind the Baseline

Social Services
Child Care Licensing and Funding

Purpose/Role of Program

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0

20

40

60

80

100

Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

# Licensed Child 
Cares

# of Licensed Child Cares

Counties are required to license private daycare homes.  Counties also administer the Child Care Assistance Program (CCAP) which is a funding source 
for child care for low income families.  Counties receive a yearly CCAP grant that is calculated based on a number of factors including population, 
number of families receiving public assistance, etc.  The goal is for counties to spend 90-100% of their CCAP grant.     

• LEFT & RIGHT: The shortage of flexible child care is a 
major issue in most communities and is often a barrier 
for parents to be able to work.   We will continue to 
discuss this concern with community partners and 
encourage more individuals and agencies to consider 
providing child care.  This is a vital service to increase self 
sufficiency and reduce dependency on public assistance.   

• LEFT : The number of child cares has remained relatively steady in 
2021. With the expiration of emergency licensing and training 
requirements, our staff are busy ensuring that providers are current 
and their homes are compliant. 

• RIGHT:  Our utilization is currently below our allotment.  The goal is to 
remain between 90-100% of our allotment.  We are currently adding 
all eligible families in to reach the allotment goal.  

0%

50%

100%

2018 2019 2020 2021 YTD

% Child Care Assistance Program 
Funds Used

% Child Care Assistance Program Funds Used
Target: 90%

17


Chart1

		43482

		43513

		43541

		43574

		43604

		43635

		43665

		43696

		43727

		43739

		43770

		43800

		43850

		43881

		43910

		43941

		43971

		44002

		44032

		44063

		44094

		44489

		44520

		44550

		44217

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368

		44398

		44429

		44460



# of Licensed Child Cares

# Licensed Child Cares

89

88

88

89

92

93

93

93

94

93

92

92

86

84

86

86

86

85

84

82

83

82

82

83

83

83

82

81

81

80

82

81

81



Sheet1

				# of Licensed Child Cares

		Jan-19		89

		Feb-19		88

		Mar-19		88

		Apr-19		89

		May-19		92

		Jun-19		93

		Jul-19		93

		Aug-19		93

		Sep-19		94

		Oct-19		93

		Nov-19		92

		Dec-19		92

		Jan-20		86

		Feb-20		84

		Mar-20		86

		Apr-20		86

		May-20		86

		Jun-20		85

		Jul-20		84

		Aug-20		82

		Sep-20		83

		Oct-21		82

		Nov-21		82

		Dec-21		83

		Jan-21		83

		Feb-21		83

		Mar-21		82

		Apr-21		81

		May-21		81

		Jun-21		80

		Jul-21		82

		Aug-21		81

		Sep-21		81






Chart1

		2018		2018

		2019		2019

		2020		2020

		2021 YTD		2021 YTD



% Child Care Assistance Program Funds Used

Target: 90%

% Child Care Assistance Program Funds Used

1.16

0.9

0.82

0.9

0.69

0.9

0.72

0.9



Sheet1

				% Child Care Assistance Program Funds Used		Target: 90%

		2018		116%		90%

		2019		82%		90%

		2020		69%		90%

		2021 YTD		72%		90%







Story Behind the Baseline

Social Services 
Children’s Programs

Purpose/Role of Program

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

0

20

40

60

80

100

Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

# Parent Support Outreach 
Program (PSOP)

# of PSOP Cases

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

# Children's Mental Health

# of Children's Mental Health

The Parent Support Outreach Program (PSOP) started in Goodhue County in July, 2013,  and expanded under a Community Investment Grant from 
South Country Health Alliance.  It is currently funded by a small DHS grant.  Children’s Mental Health case management is mandated to be provided by 
counties.  Goodhue County contracts with Fernbrook Family Center to provide CMH services. 

• LEFT: The Parent Support Outreach Program (PSOP) has been utilized 
extensively during COVID. We currently have an MSW intern who is 
working with this population and co-facilitating a parenting group. 

• RIGHT: Fernbrook continue to provide Children’s Mental Health case 
management. Tracking new referrals and eligibility has improved and 
increased the number of children receiving services.  

• LEFT: PSOP continues to be a vital service and we have 
received positive feedback from participants who are happy 
that groups have resumed outside and in person.

• RIGHT: Children’s Mental Health case management continues 
to be a vital service.  Case managers have used a variety of 
engagement strategies to help teach children and youth coping 
skills.   

18


Chart1

		43484

		47

		60

		58

		48

		47

		40

		44

		50

		42

		48

		57

		43850

		58

		67

		37

		79

		75

		64

		71

		64

		25

		24

		24

		44217

		32

		31

		25

		25

		25

		30

		34

		30



# of PSOP Cases

# Parent Support Outreach Program (PSOP)

45

55

29



Sheet1

				# of PSOP Cases

		Jan-19		45

				47

				60

				58

				48

				47

				40

				44

				50

				42

				48

				57

		Jan-20		55

				58

				67

				37

				79

				75

				64

				71

				64

				25

				24

				24

		Jan-21		29

				32

				31

				25

				25

				25

				30

				34

				30






Chart1

		43482

		43513

		43541

		43574

		43604

		43635

		43665

		43696

		43727

		43739

		43770

		43800

		43850

		43881

		43910

		43941

		43971

		44002

		44032

		44063

		44094

		44124

		44155

		44185

		44216

		44248

		44276

		44307

		44337

		44368

		44398

		44429

		44460



# of Children's Mental Health

# Children's Mental Health

79

73

71

70

70

75

79

83

84

89

85

88

85

89

82

78

78

78

100

106

108

105

105

106

123

125

131

134

136

137

98

94

96



Sheet1

				# of Children's Mental Health

		Jan-19		79

		Feb-19		73

		Mar-19		71

		Apr-19		70

		May-19		70

		Jun-19		75

		Jul-19		79

		Aug-19		83

		Sep-19		84

		Oct-19		89

		Nov-19		85

		Dec-19		88

		Jan-20		85

		Feb-20		89

		Mar-20		82

		Apr-20		78

		May-20		78

		Jun-20		78

		Jul-20		100

		Aug-20		106

		Sep-20		108

		Oct-20		105

		Nov-20		105

		Dec-20		106

		Jan-21		123

		Feb-21		125

		Mar-21		131

		Apr-21		134

		May-21		136

		Jun-21		137

		Jul-21		98

		Aug-21		94

		21-Sep		96







Story Behind the Baseline

Health & Human Services
County Cars

Purpose/Role of Program

Where Do We Go From Here?

Goodhue County
Health & Human Services

All mileage is turned in whenever Goodhue County Health and Human Services staff drive for work.  The cost to the county for driving a county car is 
lower than the rate employees are reimbursed for driving their own car.  The majority, more than half, of miles driven by our HHS department are car 
pool miles.

CENTER:  The HHS Department continues to use county pool cars for about 60-
70% of miles travelled on county HHS business. In 2019, county car usage was 
slightly down, which may be because the first few months of 2019 were very 
snowy. Accounting staff calculate this percentage based on personal miles turned 
in, so the slight decrease could be explained by staff turning in personal mileage 
more often (not necessarily using personal cars more). Many factors determine 
whether someone uses a county car, including preference, demand for county cars 
(all checked out), what cars are available (4 wheel drive), weather, destination, 
needing to transport bulky items, and employee’s residence (whether it is faster to 
drive to a meeting than first go to Red Wing to get a car).

•

• CENTER: We will continue to encourage staff to utilize 
county pool cars for county business.  This is the 
preferred and cost effective method for HHS county 
business travel.

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

100%

2019 2020 2021 YTD

% Total Miles Driven that Were 
Car Pool Miles

% Total Miles Driven that Were Car Pool Miles

19


Chart1

		2019

		2020

		2021 YTD



% Total Miles Driven that Were Car Pool Miles

% Total Miles Driven that Were Car Pool Miles

0.63

0.68

0.73



Sheet1

				% Total Miles Driven that Were Car Pool Miles

		2019		63%

		2020		68%

		2021 YTD		73%







 
Minnesota Department of Human Services 

Child Care Assistance Program 

November 1, 2021  

 

Nina Arneson, Director 

Goodhue County Health & Human Services 

nina.arneson@co.goodhue.mn.us 

 

This letter is to notify you that your agency’s 2022 - 2023 County and Tribal Child Care Fund Plan has been 

approved by the Minnesota Department of Human Services (DHS). 

 

If we have misconstrued or overlooked some provision of the agency’s plan that is inconsistent with the law 

governing Child Care Assistance or DHS policies applicable to this program, we reserve the right to require the 

county/tribe to amend the plan. 

 

All changes to your agency’s plan must be submitted as plan amendments to your DHS Policy Specialist or to 

dhs.ccap@state.mn.us   

 

Thank you for your agency’s continued support and cooperation in making the Child Care Assistance Program a 

successful support for families and children in Minnesota.  If you have questions or need technical assistance, 

please contact your DHS Policy Specialist or our office dhs.ccap@state.mn.us. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Tikki Brown 
Assistant Commissioner 
Children and Family Services 

 
 

 

CC 

Kathy Rolfer, Kathy.rolfer@co.goodhue.mn.us 

 

 

mailto:nina.arneson@co.goodhue.mn.us
mailto:dhs.ccap@state.mn.us
mailto:dhs.ccap@state.mn.us
mailto:Kathy.rolfer@co.goodhue.mn.us


Anyone who receives their first or second dose of the
COVID-19 vaccine at any of the upcoming clinics will
receive a $50 gift card! 

Individuals receiving booster shots are not eligible 
for the incentive program. 

COVID-19
Booster Clinics
Goodhue County Health & Human Services 
is vaccinating adults 18+ with the Moderna vaccine. 

FREE first, second, & booster doses will be available.

Cannon 
Falls

Red 
Wing Zumbrota

November 19th
 

December 17th
 

December 
2nd, 9th, 30th

 
January 

6th, 13th, 20th, 27th
 

November 17th
 

December 15th
 

FOR MORE INFORMATION AND TO REGISTER ONLINE VISIT:
co.goodhue.mn.us/covid-19vaccines

If you need assistance, translation services, or do not have access to
the internet, please call 651-385-2000 to register by phone

Walk-in appointments may be available.  Pre-registration is preferred.

Cannon Falls 
Community Center

Goodhue County
 Government Center Zumbrota VFW

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/1407/Register-for-Your-Vaccine


GET PAID.

GET VACCINATED.

Anyone who receives their FREE first or second dose of the

COVID-19 vaccine at any of the upcoming clinics will

receive a $50 gift card! 

 
Individuals receiving booster shots are not eligible for the incentive program.  

Goodhue County Health & Human Services 

is vaccinating adults 18+ 

with the Moderna vaccine. 

Cannon Falls

November 19th & December 17th

Cannon Falls Community Center

Red Wing

December 2nd, 9th, 30th

January 6th, 13th, 20th, 27th

Goodhue County Government Center

Zumbrota

November 17th & December 15th

Zumbrota VFW

FOR MORE INFORMATION AND TO REGISTER ONLINE VISIT:

co.goodhue.mn.us/covid-19vaccines

If you need assistance, translation services, or do not have access

 to the internet, please call 651-385-2000 to register by phone

Walk-in appointments may be available.  Pre-registration is preferred.

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/1407/Register-for-Your-Vaccine

	4b Board Action Form WIC and Peer Breastfeeding Amendment agreements - Copy
	4b1 Please_DocuSign_Goodhue_WIC-PEER_grant_2022-
	Notice to Grantee about Federal Funds
	Notice to Grantee about Federal Funds
	Minnesota Department of Health

	Notice to Grantee about Federal Funds
	12. Telecommunications Certification

	1.     State Encumbrance Verification
	ADP79B2.tmp
	Exhibit A. WIC GRANTEE's Duties

	ADP4850.tmp
	Exhibit B. WIC Funding
	(a) Consideration and Payment.
	(b) Total Obligation.


	ADP1826.tmp
	Exhibit C. Peer Duties

	ADPEA8C.tmp
	Exhibit D - Peer Funding
	Consideration
	Payment



	4c Board Action Form CMHS-Trimin Support ACS-SWS 2020
	4c1 ACS_SWS TriMin Support for 2022
	4d Board Action Form 2022-2023 BSA
	4d1 BSA 2022 thru 2023
	5b Board Action Form CARE clinic agreement FINAL
	5b1 2021 CARE Clinic Interagency Agreement - FINAL
	1. Description of Services:
	2. In-Kind Support
	5. No Employment Relationship
	6. Indemnification:
	7. Data Practices
	8. Default and Cancellation
	9. Standards
	10. Amendments

	5b2 Attachment A DPC Duties-job description
	REGULAR DUTIES:

	5b3 Attachment B Nurse Manager 11-21
	1 3rd Qtr 2021 Fiscal Report
	2 Rev & Exp Budget last page 9-30-21
	3 Out of home placement all years tabs
	September 2021

	4 HHS Overhead Q321
	5 Staffing Statement of Revenue
	6 Staffing Revenues 2021
	6 Staffing Revenues 2021.pdf
	Q321 Graph

	Quarterly Trend Report�Quarter 3, 2021
	Table of Contents
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
	Booster Clinics Flyer (3)
	Incentives Flyer (2)



